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          1  CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Welcome to

          3  today's hearing of Civil Service and Labor. At

          4  first, I do want to thank the Sergeant-At-Arms for

          5  giving us the Chambers. There's a little elbow room

          6  for everyone. So, again, I thank the

          7  Sergeant-At-Arms, and, again, I welcome you all here

          8  today.

          9                 Today the Civil Service and Labor

         10  Committee will be holding an oversight hearing to

         11  examine the use of biometric palm print scanners or

         12  hand scanners, to record a City employee's start and

         13  end of the work day.

         14                 Currently we utilize these hand

         15  scanners for many employees and many City agencies,

         16  and more agencies are to follow this year. The

         17  City's Office of Payroll Administration has stated

         18  that the system has been implemented to eliminate

         19  payroll inaccuracies and delays and also apply a

         20  time keeping rule that's uniform.

         21                 Many City employees, though, consider

         22  these hand scanners an invasion of privacy, which

         23  cheats employees out of time actually worked, and

         24  which brings with it legal issues.

         25                 Are these hand scanners a wave of the
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          2  future to accurately and properly do payroll

          3  procedures? Or are they unnecessary, costly and a

          4  detriment to labor relations and worker morale and

          5  productivity? And these are the issues that we'll be

          6  discussing today.

          7                 I want to thank my Committee staff,

          8  to my right here, Harold Gates, the Legal Counsel.

          9  To my left, Legal Counsel Elisa Chae; Policy Analyst

         10  Joan Povolny, my legislative aid Jeff Gottlieb.

         11                 I'd like to introduce my colleagues

         12  who are members of this Committee. To my right is

         13  Melissa Mark-Viverito, and Council Member Mike

         14  Nelson to my left here. And, again, I welcome you

         15  all here today.

         16                 We will be calling panels of three

         17  and four. I am not doing a clock, but I do respect

         18  that we want to get everyone in, so please keep your

         19  statements to a timely manner. I really appreciate

         20  it.

         21                 And our first panel for this hearing

         22  today is Ed Ott, Central Labor Council; Claude Fort,

         23  Local 375. Claude, step forward. And John Forester,

         24  Local 375.

         25                 Gentlemen, thank you very much for
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          2  being here and for your time and testimony.

          3                 I don't know if you want to do a flip

          4  of the coin, or however you want to work it. Claude

          5  is going to go first. Okay.

          6                 MR. FORT: Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          7                 Good afternoon, everyone. I want to

          8  thank Chairman Addabbo and the members of the

          9  Council, and the member of the Committee for giving

         10  us the opportunity to say what you have to say on

         11  this issue, and I want to thank you, Chairman

         12  Addabbo, because from the very first day you have

         13  been supportive, at least in terms of listening to

         14  what we had to say and get this hearing, put this

         15  hearing together.

         16                 I also want to thank the members of

         17  the audience who are here in support of our fight

         18  against the hand-geometry scanners.

         19                 My name is Claude Fort. I'm the

         20  President of Local 375, Civil Service Technical

         21  Guild. And Civil Service Technical Guild, Local 375,

         22  represents a highly-skilled, hard-working,

         23  scientific and technical employees at New York City

         24  agencies, including architects, engineers and

         25  construction project managers.
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          2                 Our members routinely work past the

          3  end of the normal work day, without being

          4  compensated, because of their love for what they do

          5  and their commitment to the mission of the agency

          6  for which they work.

          7                 That dedication has been undermined

          8  by the City's misguided initiative to install

          9  biometric hand scanners and order such high-tech

         10  monitoring devices in every agency.

         11                 Moreover, the City unilaterally

         12  implemented these new devices without bargaining

         13  with the union, and Local 375 has two pending

         14  improper practice cases before the Office of

         15  Collective Bargaining.

         16                 At those agencies where the City Time

         17  system has been implemented, members of this

         18  essential segment of the municipal workforce must

         19  place their hands into a biometric scanner, which

         20  matches their hand to a template at the beginning

         21  and end of the work day, as if they were punching in

         22  a time clock in a factory.

         23                 Many employees have expressed how

         24  they feel embarrassed and degraded about having to

         25  scan in and scan out, as if they were not trusted to
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          2  honestly record their time.

          3                 Others have also expressed their

          4  disgust in having to insert a body part into a piece

          5  of equipment that is breeding ground for bacteria

          6  and that has already posed documented risks to

          7  health and safety.

          8                 City Time system which registers time

          9  down to the minute, has created a work-based culture

         10  which penalizes an employee for being five minutes

         11  late, but disregards two hours of unpaid work at the

         12  end of the day.

         13                 The combination of a factory for

         14  mentality and installation of the degrading hand

         15  scanner time clocks has devastated moral and

         16  discourages dedicated City employees from putting in

         17  any more than the minimal hours and effort required.

         18                 The reality has been even worse than

         19  we had feared. Not only has there been phenomenal

         20  waste and inefficiency resulting from poorly

         21  designed software, but the new system has actually

         22  cheated City employees out of pay and accrued time.

         23                 Even more alarming than the

         24  de-evaluation of our members' professionalism,

         25  however, is the fact that the biometric
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          2  hand-geometry scanners are apparently only the first

          3  step on a slippery slope towards a future of

          4  high-tech surveillance devices which have the

          5  capability of physically tracking employees

          6  throughout the workplace and all times.

          7                 The City is planning or contemplating

          8  the use of interactive voice recognition systems for

          9  people calling from the field. GPS, SmartCards and

         10  data docking stations, as data collection devices

         11  for City time.

         12                 Local 375 does not oppose automation

         13  of payroll functions in time and record keeping;

         14  however, City Time can operate those functions

         15  without unnecessary biometric devices, as the City's

         16  Office of Labor Relations has conceded.

         17                 Employees exempt from clocking in and

         18  out simply use electronic time sheets on their

         19  computers. Nor are these being used for security or

         20  to control facility access. Instead, their only

         21  purpose is to track the movement of City employees,

         22  both at agency offices and in the field.

         23                 Biometric surveillance constitutes an

         24  invasive and unnecessary incursion into the privacy

         25  of municipal employees.
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          2                 Unfortunately, it also represent the

          3  City's enlistment in a national movement towards

          4  privacy rights groups and a labor movement called

          5  geo-slavery. They're used by government agencies and

          6  private businesses of technology for security

          7  purposes as a remote control to track the movements

          8  of the workforce.

          9                 Those were prepared statements, but

         10  if I may, Chairman Addabbo, this issue has turned

         11  out to be as bad as you thought it was going to be.

         12  And as we say, this is the start of a slippery

         13  slope. It has been, it's now in place at DDC and

         14  it's coming up at the Department of Finance, City

         15  Planning and Homeless Services, and the City is

         16  planning to implement it within the next two years

         17  in every Mayoral agency.

         18                 Now, this new system is very

         19  offensive and dirty in some cases. We have members

         20  who have to put their hands in the scanners after

         21  they witness people taking their band-aid off and

         22  use the hand scanners with open cuts. All right? I

         23  mean, we are talking about people who never punch a

         24  time clock. We are talking about professionals, who

         25  are involved in design and construction and who
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          2  deliver quality services to the City of New York.

          3                 The thing is, it is not about

          4  productivity. Management want to control the

          5  workforce. They want to control the workplace. They

          6  want to control labor. And this is why they are

          7  implementing this rigid system which gives no

          8  flexibility to anyone.

          9                 Now, we know if we let it go it's not

         10  going to stop at the hand scanners only. They are

         11  also looking into new technologies that can track

         12  people everywhere they go.

         13                 You know, if the City was to issue an

         14  infrared card, an identification card, this could

         15  allow them potentially to track employees where they

         16  go, whether they go to the bathroom or they go out

         17  for a smoke, you could be tracked every where you

         18  go. This is very invasive. This is very offensive

         19  for the professionals that we are.

         20                 Now, we feel very strongly about this

         21  issue. Our members feel very strongly about this

         22  issue, and we hope that something will be done about

         23  it. We hope that your committee will look into it

         24  and help us fight this battle, not only for Local

         25  375 members, but for every City worker in New York
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          2  City.

          3                 So, thank you very much.

          4                 OTT: Thank you, Chairman Addabbo,

          5  Committee members. It was only a couple of weeks ago

          6  we filled another room with the taxi drivers of this

          7  City, talking about global positioning systems,

          8  similar technologies being used in a way that we

          9  have to be very guarded against, and here we are

         10  again, so I guess Claude is right, it's the wave of

         11  the future.

         12                 Good afternoon, Chairman Addabbo,

         13  members of the Committee and the Committee on Civil

         14  Service and Labor. My name is Ed Ott, and I'm the

         15  Executive Director of the New York City Central

         16  Labor Council, AFL-CIO, a federation of 400

         17  affiliated locals representing one and a half

         18  million working men and women in the City.

         19                 As the country's largest labor

         20  council, the Central Labor Council has always worked

         21  to support and advance New York City's workforce, as

         22  well as support work place technological

         23  advancements that offer working people greater

         24  opportunities and more efficient workplace benefits.

         25                 As a Executive Director, I strongly
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          2  believe that biometric hand-geometry scanners and

          3  other such high-tech monitoring devices are a back

          4  door form of fingerprinting, and send a wrong

          5  message to our hardworking municipal employees.

          6                 The fact of the matter is biometric

          7  surveillance constitutes an invasion, an unnecessary

          8  intrusion in the privacy of the municipal workforce.

          9                 Equally disturbing is the fact that

         10  the City has violated local 275's collective

         11  bargaining agreement by implementing these new

         12  devices without the union's consent or input.

         13                 At the City agencies, where City Time

         14  system has been implemented, we have learned that

         15  many workers have felt embarrassed and degraded

         16  about having to scan in and out each time they leave

         17  the building. I don't blame them. I would absolutely

         18  feel demoralized by this controlling tracking

         19  system.

         20                 Workers have told us that the new

         21  system has actually cheated them out of pay and

         22  accrued time. This is plain wrong. And enough of a

         23  reason for the City to stop the implementation of

         24  this flawed high-tech surveillance system now.

         25                 Any intrusive use of biometrics needs
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          2  to conform to the standards and expectations of a

          3  privacy-minded workforce and society. In the spirit

          4  of civil liberties and worker protection, the New

          5  York City Central Labor Council calls on the City of

          6  New York to immediately stop the implementation of

          7  the City Time system, and to work with 375 to come

          8  to a consensus on a more agreeable automated time

          9  accounting system.

         10                 I want to thank the Council for their

         11  time. Just let me add something here. There's a

         12  history of workers resistant over intrusive

         13  supervision. Factory workers in fact resisted for a

         14  long time and we had legislation in this state and

         15  other states against fingerprinting under certain

         16  circumstances, and we tried to narrow it only to

         17  those areas that were necessary.

         18                 This notion of keeping track of

         19  professionals the moment they walk through the door,

         20  when they're in fact compensated for what they

         21  actually produce, and many of them work far beyond a

         22  normal work day in order to get it done. It's so

         23  disrespectful, but it's also a substantial change in

         24  working conditions. It's a substantial change in

         25  procedure. And it should have been bargained out
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          2  across the table. It's simply the right thing to do.

          3                 MR. FORSTER: Good afternoon. Thank

          4  you, Council Member Addabbo, for putting this

          5  together. I think this is terribly, terribly

          6  important. I'm glad to see it here. I hope there

          7  will be additional ones, other members of the

          8  Council who are here today to hear this.

          9                 I'm Jon Forster, I'm the First Vice

         10  President of Local 375 in District Council 37.

         11                 I want to make two things very clear

         12  at the beginning. One, we are not opposed to the

         13  computerization of time sheets. We're clearly

         14  cognizant of the fact that we're in the 21st

         15  Century. There is no reason to have hundreds of

         16  thousands of papers moving around.

         17                 The system that has been developed

         18  called City Time, it is cumbersome, it is

         19  complicated, it is time consuming, it is inaccurate,

         20  having stolen our members' times in various

         21  occasions. But having said all of that, we are

         22  willing to work with the City in terms of trying to

         23  make that system work.

         24                 However, second, we are unequivocally

         25  opposed to the use of palm scanners, the voice
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          2  recognition systems, and the other systems that the

          3  City is thinking about in terms of putting our

          4  members under surveillance and tracking our members.

          5  They're totally inappropriate, and they're totally

          6  unnecessary to the operation at City Time. We have

          7  said this time and time again, there will be many

          8  people working with City Time as a system, who will

          9  not have to use those systems, who don't have to use

         10  it in order to make the system work. It makes it

         11  especially offensive that the City persists in their

         12  efforts to implements those kinds of systems.

         13                 The palm scanner, it's not a security

         14  system. People need to realize this. It is located

         15  inside secured doors. It is not a security system.

         16  It is, however, to our members, it is invasive, it

         17  is offensive, and it is degrading.

         18                 Our members design or oversee

         19  projects that are worth tens of millions of dollars.

         20                 We've designed parks. We've designed

         21  City Hall Park, Brooklyn Bridge Park, Soundview Park

         22  in the Bronx. We design water systems and subway

         23  systems. We oversee the construction of Water Tunnel

         24  No. 3. We do big projects. Good design. The City

         25  trusts us with projects that are worth tens of
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          2  millions of dollars, but they don't trust us to sign

          3  in on time. There's something wrong with that

          4  picture.

          5                 And the City furthermore has

          6  admitted, even when they started to implement this,

          7  the Department of Design and Construction, that it

          8  wasn't, actually signing in was not a problem, that

          9  there hadn't been a lot of instances in which people

         10  were supposedly cheating on their time. That really

         11  wasn't the motivation.

         12                 Even more disturbing, that the palm

         13  scanners, which are technically known as hand-punch

         14  4000s, made by Ingersol Ran, are capable of

         15  physically tracking people. If the City was in fact

         16  to issue an infrared identification card, that could

         17  physically track our members throughout this

         18  premises. It would track them whether they were

         19  going out for a cup of coffee, whether they were

         20  going to get a cigarette, whether they were going to

         21  the bathroom, they would be tracked.

         22                 And it is in fact in use right now in

         23  Wyckoff Hospital, where the nurses are being tracked

         24  every day and timed in terms of how much time do

         25  they spend in the nurse's lounge, and how much time
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          2  do they spend with each patient, and how much time

          3  should they spend?

          4                 So, they come back and, oh, you spent

          5  19 minutes, you should only be spending 12 minutes

          6  with that patient. This is not -- we're dealing here

          7  with much more than just a time keeping system.

          8  We're dealing with two basic things. One is invasion

          9  of privacy; and the second is an age-old battle, I

         10  guess, between management labor. It's management's

         11  effort to rigidly control the workplace. And it is

         12  not appropriate.

         13                 The City is researching the use of

         14  voice recognition systems, IVRs. Now, voice

         15  recognition systems are, in fact, unique. They're

         16  set up so that when people call in from the field,

         17  you're recognized by your voice pattern. Your voice

         18  pattern is unique to you as your fingerprint.

         19                 The City will have to compile a

         20  databank of all voice recognition patterns. How is

         21  that going to be protected? The very company that's

         22  doing the software had their own computer systems

         23  broken into and compromised the files of some, I

         24  believe it was 5,000 people working at the Pentagon.

         25                 This is not a very good start. Do the
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          2  voice recognition patterns become part of a national

          3  registry? And yet, ironically, when the City talked

          4  about the palm scanners, one of their arguments was,

          5  oh, no, this is not a fingerprinter. And you know

          6  what? They're right. The hand scanners are not a

          7  fingerprint. Voice recognition is a fingerprint and

          8  it's inappropriate.

          9                 Coupled with GPS phones, coupled with

         10  docking stations and kiosks, the City is setting up

         11  a network of surveillance and control that goes far

         12  beyond simply tracking one's time.

         13                 Is need driving the City's

         14  implementation? Is the workforce so rampant with

         15  cheaters that it's out of control, or is technology

         16  driving this, and it's a matter of saying, hey, we

         17  got it, why don't we use it? Let's see what it does.

         18                 In Ohio an employer asked two -- or

         19  demanded that two employees have chip implants in

         20  their body. Is that okay? Is that where we're going?

         21  If that's where we're heading, will that be okay?

         22  Where do we draw the line on this?

         23                 On Wall Street the Bloomberg

         24  Industries, yes, our friend, is pushing security

         25  firms to in fact adopt the biometric devices.
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          2  Pushing for fingerprint identification as access to

          3  computers and websites. However, is that a good

          4  reason for the City to go down this path? We have an

          5  initial cost of $240 million and millions more in

          6  terms of software changes, in terms of hardware and

          7  in terms of ongoing maintenance?

          8                 I can only say in conclusion that the

          9  use of palm scanners, the voice recognition systems

         10  and other systems of surveillance are expensive,

         11  they're counterproductive, and totally unnecessary

         12  investment by the City. But this is not just the

         13  labor issue. This is also an issue about where do we

         14  want our society to go? And I would ask the Council,

         15  please, take a long, hard look at this policy, track

         16  down the funding sources and their approval process,

         17  and then please consider legislative initiatives

         18  that we intend to pursue in terms of ways to begin

         19  to draw the lines for ultimately what the City is

         20  proposing here is not good for the workforce and

         21  it's not good for the society.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you, Mr.

         24  Forster. Thank you.

         25                 Before we get to questions, before we
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          2  get to questions, I just want to acknowledge Council

          3  Member Seabrook, a member of this Committee, here

          4  today. Thank you very much.

          5                 I know my colleagues have questions,

          6  but let me start off by saying this, by doing this:

          7  I am going to use, and I'm going to use your

          8  testimony because a lot of your testimony had the

          9  questions I was interested in. First, I'm concerned

         10  about the input that you had with regards to the

         11  implementation of these scanners.

         12                 Obviously, I think communication

         13  means a lot when we talk about productivity of our

         14  workers, morale, just the worker environment, I

         15  think a lot has to be said for the communication,

         16  that they have with the Administration or even the

         17  managerial communication. So, I'm a little

         18  concerned, obviously, about that issue.

         19                 So, the message to the worker, when

         20  there's a lack of, a breakdown of communication

         21  here, what kind of message does that send to the

         22  worker? And does it have an effect on the morale and

         23  on the productivity of that worker?

         24                 MR. OTT: I've always believed it

         25  does. The workplace fact is various degrees
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          2  controlled by forms of intimidation by management.

          3  And part of why workers organize is to be able to

          4  get into a discussion of how the workplace is run as

          5  equals.

          6                 When you ignore process that's taken

          7  us years to develop, and just begin to implement

          8  these kinds of substantial changes, it's insulting

          9  and it also is undermining to the institutions that

         10  workers form.

         11                 I believe that is a demoralizing

         12  experience with people, but it's also an

         13  intimidating one. We should not lose sight of that.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Anyone want to

         15  weigh in on that?

         16                 MR. FORT: Yes. Also, I mean, if the

         17  City wants to upgrade his (sic) time keeping system,

         18  we have nothing against that. But they considered

         19  that it was a policy decision and the hand scanner

         20  is not necessarily for what they want it to do, you

         21  know, in terms of keeping the time in a more

         22  accurate manner.

         23                 So, it's unnecessary and it's

         24  disturbing and counterproductive because people

         25  spend a lot of time talking about the hand scanners
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          2  as opposed to really constituting what they are

          3  doing. It's that offensive.

          4                 MR. FORSTER: And let me just add

          5  also, I think it's so telling that every single time

          6  it's introduced in a new agency there is an outcry

          7  against it. I mean when people are first presented

          8  with it.

          9                 We can talk about it. We can talk

         10  about it here, somewhat abstractly perhaps, but when

         11  it happens in the agency, every time there is an

         12  outcry and people say why are we being subjected to

         13  this? It is inappropriate, it is downgrading and

         14  it's offensive.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Leading into

         16  this question, because, Claude, you had mentioned

         17  it, the necessity of these hand scanners, are we at

         18  an age where these hand scanners are necessary? Or

         19  as stated, they're really not necessary to implement

         20  City Time?

         21                 So, the question is, why the hand

         22  scanners? Why now? Are they necessary, and what

         23  cost? I know we're doing better financially, but are

         24  we to prioritize in the City's budget hand scanners

         25  when we have so many other issues?
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          2                 So, do you want to weigh in on that,

          3  gentlemen?

          4                 MR. FORT: Well, definitely this is,

          5  it is a system that could be very expensive and we

          6  recognize that the money could be used for other

          7  purposes.

          8                 Again, you know, hand scanner is not

          9  necessarily for what the City wants to do. They can

         10  upgrade, they can improve the automation of time

         11  keeping system without pushing anybody to put their

         12  body part into this greasy machines. You know, that

         13  in most cases are an embarrassment to the members.

         14                 MR. FORSTER: Let me also say, if I

         15  may, that this is on a backdrop of having been

         16  installed at the Department of Design and

         17  Construction, where nobody has been punching time

         18  clocks. This is a professional design operation and

         19  nobody, whether our members or anybody else there,

         20  has been punching time clocks, because they are, in

         21  fact, turning out a real product.

         22                 The fact that the hand scanners have

         23  been installed is absolutely, and as Claude

         24  indicated, it was a policy decision, not a technical

         25  decision on the part of the City, it was wrong to be
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          2  done, and the system itself is easily operable

          3  without the use of hand scanners.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: You do not need

          5  hand scanners?

          6                 MR. FORSTER: You do not. There will

          7  be many people who will actually use this system who

          8  will not be using the hand scanner. And they pull up

          9  an electronic time card and you enter your time on

         10  that time card and that's perfectly adaptable with

         11  the system. The system runs fine with that. And

         12  we're more than happy to talk with the City of other

         13  checks and balances that they might like to work in

         14  there. We're happy to do that. The hand scanner is

         15  absolutely not necessary.

         16                 MR. OTT: You know, the underlying

         17  question here is what's the reasonable amount of

         18  control and supervision. That's why we had the

         19  process. That's why we developed the bargaining

         20  process over many years.

         21                 We kind of get it, you know, labor

         22  law is designed to maintain the flow of work. It's

         23  not there to protect workers rights, necessarily.

         24  But we abridge that process through this abstract

         25  that we call collective bargaining.
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          2                 You asked why they did it? Well, I

          3  think you have to ask them. Managements often, and

          4  I'm not saying that's what they did here,

          5  managements often talk themselves into the latest

          6  technology because somebody read it somewhere and it

          7  seems like a good idea at the time, and they don't

          8  think about the implications of what this means for

          9  everybody involved.

         10                 From our point of view, from the

         11  Central Labor Council point of view, if they can do

         12  this here, they set a standard that other employers

         13  may want to adapt. And we find that process to be

         14  objectionable.

         15                 I'm as concerned about what they did,

         16  in terms of putting the system in, as how they got

         17  to that conclusion without talking to anybody.

         18                 In fact, because of the expense of

         19  this system and its implications, you probably

         20  should have brought it to a broader arena, like the

         21  Council.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Well, to your

         23  point, I would have loved to have asked the

         24  Administration a lot of questions, unfortunately

         25  they are not here today. Their position being that
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          2  due to the fact the hand scanner issue has caused a

          3  legal issue to arise, I understand there is pending

          4  litigation because they cannot talk to the merits of

          5  the case, as it is a pending matter, that they could

          6  not be here today. But that doesn't preclude this

          7  Committee or even myself, and I intend to, to talk

          8  to the Administration obviously subsequent to the

          9  hearing with the ammunition of people giving

         10  testimony. So, I plan to do that, but I do wish they

         11  were here today.

         12                 I want to acknowledge Council Member

         13  Gennaro for being here today, a Committee member.

         14                 We have questions from Council Member

         15  Melissa Mark-Viverito, Council Member Nelson and

         16  then Council Member Seabrook. So, Council Member

         17  Mark-Viverito.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Thank

         19  you, Mr. Chair. And thank you, all. I mean, I

         20  clearly knew that this issue was a controversial one

         21  and by the turnout today it clearly is such.

         22                 Obviously, I don't think we would be

         23  very shortsighted if we were to see this as an

         24  isolated incident, and not look at it in a greater

         25  context. I think that you're raising that today.
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          2                 You did mention, sir, I'm sorry I

          3  forgot your name, from DC 37, that -- your name?

          4                 MR. FORSTER: Jon Forster.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: John

          6  Forster. You did mention that when the

          7  Administration was asked about this in particular,

          8  that they specifically said it had nothing to do

          9  with the punching in and out, meaning the timing of

         10  it. So, did you get any sort of reasoning as to why

         11  this was being implementing? And what was the

         12  rationale?

         13                 MR. FORSTER: Right. It was

         14  interesting at the time.

         15                 One of their foremost reasons for

         16  using the hand scanner at least was to prevent buddy

         17  punching. And the idea being, I guess, when you have

         18  a time clock, a buddy could actually punch your

         19  card, nobody would know the difference. That was

         20  rather ironic, given, one, that we had no time

         21  clocks at DDC whatsoever. And two, having

         22  representing the members at DDC for the last nine

         23  years and disciplinaries, that simply wasn't an

         24  issue. And they acknowledged it wasn't an issue,

         25  which is why there is, you know, part of this thing
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          2  is that technology was driving it, rather than the

          3  society driving the technology. And the other is

          4  that I think that there is a sense here that this is

          5  a way that they could get a tighter grip of the

          6  workforce, and that they can be more rigidly

          7  controlling. I think it's highly misguided, but at

          8  this point I'm kind of guessing, but those were,

          9  officially at least, their position was to prevent

         10  buddy punching and a couple of other things which

         11  actually weren't there.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: The

         13  other question I wanted to raise to the three of

         14  you, since you do represent unions, do you see this,

         15  I mean the first concern I have as an elected and as

         16  a City Council member, and make sure my colleagues

         17  would, is in effect there has been no communication

         18  or dialogue, not only with the unions and the

         19  workforce that is impacting, but also with us as a

         20  Council when you're talking about these large scale

         21  policies that are being implemented, that also, you

         22  know, are millions of dollars, that's a greater

         23  concern, that there has been no dialogue around

         24  that.

         25                 But do you, as union representatives,
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          2  see this in any way as a back-handed way of trying

          3  to weaken the position of unions?

          4                 MR. OTT: Whether it's conscious or

          5  not, when you implement something in this way, what

          6  I said in my testimony is it undermines the system

          7  that is set up to control these things.

          8                 What's disturbing here is that this

          9  seems to be going forward with a momentum. They

         10  can't testify publicly because it's already in

         11  court, but just because it's in court doesn't mean

         12  that you can't stop what you're doing, rethink it,

         13  go back to the table, talk to the unions involved,

         14  and try to straighten it out.

         15                 So, there's a kind of strong arm

         16  tactic here that's disturbing.

         17                 I mean, frankly, you know, we were

         18  always taught, and Council members that have been

         19  involved in unions, they try to keep the legislative

         20  body out of the collective bargaining wing as much

         21  as you can. It's really executive branch. It's the

         22  broader implications of this, all workers, union and

         23  non-union, that I think drives it into this arena.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Any

         25  other comments?
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          2                 MR. FORT: Well, one reason management

          3  gave in terms of why they implement the system is

          4  because they want accuracy in the time giving and

          5  people can -- I mean, automatically check their

          6  leave balance and the time, you know, what of it

          7  having in the storage. And this is not the case. We

          8  find out that it's doing the exact opposite.

          9                 As a matter of fact, people now are

         10  in the position where they cannot know exactly how

         11  much time they have left for vacation or sick leave,

         12  and in most cases the system is so messed up that

         13  they have to issue a commissioner's check, you know,

         14  on a constant basis.

         15                 So, the reason they gave, in terms of

         16  why they are implementing this system, is not what

         17  it is at all, and the system, I don't know if it's

         18  the software or the system itself, is not designed

         19  to deal with so many issues that the members are

         20  facing, and is doing the exact opposite.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Well,

         22  thank you, all.

         23                 I don't know if you want to make an

         24  additional comment?

         25                 MR. FORSTER: I would just add, to try
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          2  to answer that, yes I think that the imposition of

          3  this kind of rigidity within the workplace, the

          4  capacity for surveillance that this involves, in

          5  terms of the GPS phones and things like that, I

          6  think, yeah, I think it does weaken the union. I

          7  think it does attack the union. And one of the

          8  things that we fight for is dignity in the

          9  workplace, and this is a direct attack on that

         10  dignity.

         11                 I mean, just parenthetically, I mean

         12  if you can think about people carrying GPS phones,

         13  you know, so they carry them during their lunch

         14  hour, too. So, what happens if they're going to AA

         15  meetings on a regular basis, or what if they're

         16  going to HIV clinics for treatment on a regular

         17  basis, all that becomes known because, you know,

         18  suddenly management is able to track people.

         19                 Yes, I think it's a big problem in

         20  terms of an attack on humans, yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Well,

         22  again, I want to thank the three of you. I think

         23  you're really raising some additional questions and

         24  challenges that I hadn't factored in. And I also

         25  want to thank Chairman Addabbo for raising this and
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          2  facilitating this hearing.

          3                 So, thank you all for your testimony

          4  today.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

          6  much, Council member.

          7                 Council Member Nelson.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you, Mr.

          9  Chair.

         10                 I think what has to be looked into,

         11  part of this, if I'm correct, effective service is a

         12  two-way street, so if an employee comes in at 9:01

         13  or 9:02, he or she does not receive credit until

         14  9:15, because of the 15-minute clock, if you will?

         15                 MR. FORSTER: You know, the system

         16  works in very odd ways. You know, the contract

         17  itself has a leeway of five minutes, so, yes, there

         18  had been a default mechanism whereby the system was

         19  defaulting to the closest 15 minutes. My

         20  understanding is that although that's been corrected

         21  on the arrival time, it has not been corrected on

         22  the leaving time.

         23                 There are oddities to the system, for

         24  instance, say if you have a doctor's appointment in

         25  the morning, you come in at 1:00 and work until
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          2  5:00, the system won't credit you for four hours of

          3  work. It grabs one of those hours and says, oh, no,

          4  one of those hours has to be a lunch hour.

          5                 There are so many inconsistencies,

          6  and we have multiple instances in which members have

          7  lost substantial amount of time dealing with this

          8  system. Both in terms of the system grabbing the

          9  time. But I also have to say, just in terms of how

         10  long it takes to work through the system, I mean

         11  you're losing truly hours and hours of time every

         12  week, just because people have to work the system.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Sort of like

         14  the antithesis of a theft of service, it's sort of

         15  like a theft of money that you do?

         16                 MR. FORSTER: Absolutely.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: As far as the

         18  health issue goes, we'll say IRIS (phonetic)

         19  scanning or some other way of doing it, would that

         20  be a healthy way of dealing with this matter? It's

         21  actually IRIS or --

         22                 MR. FORT: Well, the thing is our

         23  members have never punched time clock, you know, and

         24  we are against any form of punching time clock. You

         25  know, whether it is through scanning your hand or
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          2  through whatever you have described, you don't have

          3  the history of doing that, the culture of doing

          4  that. I think it's unfair that we start doing

          5  anything similar to that at this time.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: But

          7  healthwise, is there any detrimental effect, say,

          8  with the eye. Is it possible it could cause some

          9  sort of radiation or something in the eye? Maybe we

         10  need a medical expert.

         11                 MR. FORSTER: Right. I don't think any

         12  of us, thank goodness, have done a whole lot of

         13  research on that yet, because that's not yet on the

         14  table.

         15                 My understanding is that where that

         16  is implemented is in top-security agencies, the

         17  Pentagon, things like that.

         18                 Again, I think it would probably be

         19  an exorbitantly expensive system, and I think

         20  totally inappropriate for our workforce.

         21                 But I'm sorry, we haven't really

         22  researched it.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Just a

         24  possible issue.

         25                 How often is fraudulently done, if
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          2  you will, time cards, which is a friend clock

          3  somebody in or out? How often does this happen?

          4                 MR. FORSTER: If I may, having

          5  represented over 650 of our members at DDC for nine

          6  years, that, although there were some concerns in

          7  the field on some of the time cards, the concerns in

          8  the main office, which is where the hand scanners

          9  are being used, the palm scanners, I can't remember

         10  a single case in nine years of that being an issue,

         11  in terms of a disciplinary. I may have been wrong,

         12  there may have been one or two in nine years, but

         13  certainly by no means a major issue.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Doesn't seem

         15  to be, according to what you're saying.

         16                 Do you think that perhaps certain

         17  agencies, in consideration, such as OEM, Fire

         18  Department, Police Department, given today's Ike

         19  Heist (phonetic), the potential of terrorist

         20  infiltration, do you think that some agencies might

         21  or should put this system into effect?

         22                 MR. FORSTER: I think you raise a

         23  really critical question, and the question is really

         24  where do we draw the line, you know.

         25                 I think that possibly, you know, GPS
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          2  devices in Emergency Response Vehicles, maybe that's

          3  appropriate. You know, maybe it's appropriate to

          4  know where your ambulances are at all moments.

          5                 You know, I think that that's

          6  something that has to be discussed. But I think that

          7  this kind of massive imposition of tracking systems

          8  on a huge workforce as the City of New York, is

          9  inappropriate.

         10                 So, I think part of the issue is, in

         11  fact, where do you draw the line? Is there a place

         12  where those kinds of devices would be more

         13  appropriate than others? And I think, you know, we'd

         14  welcome a conversation on that, but one of the

         15  problems is the City hasn't seen fit to enter into a

         16  conversation on it.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Well, they

         18  certainly should. We're part of it.

         19                 MR. OTT: Council member, if I can

         20  jump in on that for a second?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Sure.

         22                 MR. OTT: Even in the Home Land

         23  Security there was a debate over appropriateness of

         24  the rights with people to bargain with the Executive

         25  Office beginning out by saying, no, we don't want to
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          2  have any restriction at all, and it was later found

          3  that in fact those workers are entitled.

          4                 Within any agency, this is an open

          5  discussion on what is appropriate and what is not

          6  and to what level. The bargaining process is a check

          7  on going too far one way, and I don't think we

          8  should lose sight of that.

          9                 I would be unwilling to say that

         10  there is any agency anywhere in government where

         11  this is not open to discussion.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Well, good.

         13  I'm glad you cleared that up. Also, is it true that

         14  you will know when a nurse is actually in the

         15  ladies' room or the mens' room, or how much they are

         16  in an individual's room, a patient's room?

         17                 MR. OTT: Nurses are the most

         18  over-supervised workers in the world. They can't

         19  walk into a room without signing a chart. They can't

         20  walk out of a work station.

         21                 I've worked in hospitals, I've

         22  represented hospital workers, nurses have a very,

         23  very complicated relationship with the system

         24  because it's a life or death matter. It would be

         25  unbelievable to me to be a supervisor in a hospital
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          2  and not to be able to answer the question where is

          3  the nurse? They know at all times.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Fine. Thank

          5  you.

          6                 Thank you for your answers and your

          7  time.

          8                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: We have been

         10  joined by Council Member Robert Jackson.

         11                 And now a question from Council

         12  Member Seabrook.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Thank you

         14  very much, Mr. Chairman.

         15                 The question as it relates to the

         16  hand scanner and a health issue. There was a

         17  statement that was made as it relates to the health

         18  and most germs are spread by the hand. Perhaps you

         19  can talk a little bit about that, and to see any

         20  studies, because that's a concern that I have as it

         21  relates to a health issue in doing this.

         22                 MR. FORSTER: I think it's a deep

         23  concern. I mean, obviously the hand scanners are

         24  relatively new. I'm not aware of any study at this

         25  point that's been done in terms of that, but the
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          2  fact that you would have dozens and maybe more than

          3  that members who just are coming in from the field

          4  and placing their hand on the same surface, the fact

          5  that you have in some cases people literally having

          6  to take band-aids off of their hand in order for

          7  their palm to be read, in light of the fact that

          8  there are certain kinds of viruses that sustain

          9  themselves in the open air for much longer than

         10  others, I think it's inevitable. And you know, it's

         11  particularly ironic to me that they're deciding to

         12  put this into the Health Department. But I think

         13  it's inevitable that we've got real health concerns

         14  here, and that at this time of the year we have all

         15  this concern and the Health Department leading on

         16  this issue of flu, right? And yet, here we go, we're

         17  going to put in this communal surface where

         18  everybody is going to be slapping down their hand on

         19  the same communal surface, yes, I think it is

         20  clearly an issue. I think it is an issue that needs

         21  probably further study.

         22                 I will tell you, one of the things

         23  that we forced the City to do at DDC was to put in

         24  Purell dispensers because of that health issue. And

         25  then they said, oh, gee, well maybe that's a good
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          2  idea.

          3                 I'm not sure they're actually going

          4  to do that within the Department of Health. They

          5  haven't said they are yet. They probably should. But

          6  that also raises concerns.

          7                 I mean, I've talked to medical

          8  professionals on this, and using Purell three or

          9  four times a day is not necessarily the best thing.

         10  There are allergic reactions, too. I mean, that's

         11  not going to solve all of the problems.

         12                 And then we have people who come in

         13  with Carpal Tunnel Syndrome, who have their wrists

         14  that are in splints or in casts, they won't

         15  necessarily be able to palm in.

         16                 We have an issue, it goes a little

         17  bit beyond health, but with long fingernails it

         18  might not fit right.

         19                 I mean, there's all kinds of stuff.

         20  So, I mean, there are. But, yes, health concerns are

         21  a major concern for us.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: I have a

         23  concern as it relates to TB. It is one, a major

         24  concern that could happen as it relates to

         25  Corrections and others as you implement this, and
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          2  the danger of that, and perhaps this Committee,

          3  jointly with the Health Committee, can look into

          4  those issues that are really important as it relates

          5  to this. Because I see it as a serious health issue

          6  as it relates to germs and the spreading of those

          7  communical diseases as TB.

          8                 MR. FORSTER: I think that would be

          9  great. I would welcome that.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Thank you,

         11  Mr. Chairman.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

         13  much, Council Member Seabrook.

         14                 Gentlemen, lastly, so if we're

         15  talking about a situation where these hand scanners

         16  are inaccurate, costly, maybe unnecessary for even

         17  keeping the City Time, and we're looking to promote

         18  input and communication, okay? What's the

         19  alternative? Is there an alternative out there that

         20  we can start the dialogue today in the hopes of,

         21  again, promoting communication and input and doing

         22  away with maybe something that's unnecessary, and as

         23  I said, inaccurate; what's the alternative?

         24                 MR. FORT: Well, I think we will

         25  welcome an opportunity to sit down with the City and
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          2  talk about it and negotiate, you know, any -- I

          3  mean, on any issue that has to do with improving

          4  communication with the members and with the union

          5  and we are prepared to do that. We definitely

          6  believe that the hand scanner is not the way to go,

          7  but through negotiations we believe we can improve

          8  communication.

          9                 MR. FORSTER: I would ask the City to

         10  please stop immediately using the hand scanners. The

         11  system works fine without it. In fact, it might be a

         12  propter to figure out other ways to be able to work

         13  with the system.

         14                 I mean, look, all of us is supportive

         15  of the fact that workers need to arrive on time, and

         16  they need to be there for their jobs. That's not the

         17  issue here.

         18                 The issue is how is that enforced.

         19  And I think that we would ask the City to in fact

         20  stop using the hand scanners. We would ask the City

         21  to stop pushing additional surveillance systems,

         22  such as the voice recognition system, and to not

         23  issue additional DPS phones and then sit down and

         24  talk to us. We're reasonable people. We're willing

         25  to work stuff out. You know, and I think we could do
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          2  that within the context of the negotiation. I think

          3  that's the appropriate thing to do, but I think in

          4  the interim, I think it's inappropriate for the City

          5  to continue.

          6                 I mean, every meeting we have with

          7  them, they're kind of upping the ante, and there's

          8  like some new aspect that, you know, they want to

          9  impose, and I think it makes it very difficult that

         10  we find ourselves in this long slippery slope.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Again, and just

         12  finally, you're saying the current system of the

         13  electronic time cards basically works fine. To an

         14  extent it has enough flexibility to incorporate

         15  doctors appointments or overtime, there is enough

         16  flexibility there in that system and it does work.

         17                 MR. FORSTER: Absolutely. City Time in

         18  the way it's set up has about 16, 17 different

         19  computer screens that are, as I say, it's

         20  complicated and cumbersome, but that aside, the

         21  system works, yes, and people will be multiple

         22  people that are using the system, are using it now,

         23  would be using it in the future, who would not be

         24  using the hand scanner at all. And you can, in fact,

         25  pull up an electronic time card on one of those
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          2  screens, and you can in fact enter your times of

          3  arrival and departure, Monday through Friday, on

          4  those screens. And I think we're more than happy to

          5  talk about with the City in terms of a little more

          6  closely defining that process, and that's fine. But

          7  absolutely the system works without the hand scan.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Gentlemen, I

          9  appreciate your time and testimony today, and I look

         10  forward to the dialogue on this issue.

         11                 Thank you very much.

         12                 MR. FORSTER: Thank you very much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Our next panel,

         14  our next panel, Ronaldo Vega from Local 375;

         15  Michelle Kelly. Michelle, thank you. Cecelia

         16  McCarthy, step forward, please. And Salvatore

         17  Galletta, American Engineering Alliance.

         18                 I want to thank you all for being

         19  here today. If you will please state your name and

         20  affiliation and give your testimony, please.

         21                 MS. NG: Good afternoon. My name is

         22  Michelle Keller Ng. I'm the Second Vice President of

         23  Local 375, the Service Technical Guild, with an

         24  affiliation with District Council 37.

         25                 Today we are making history. We,
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          2  speaker for speaker, are attempting to raise your

          3  conscience about the needs that we have regarding

          4  this big brother technological equipment.

          5                 Why has the presumption of innocence

          6  for hard-working and productive members died away?

          7  Does anyone within City government realize the

          8  relationship, dynamic but cherished on the shop

          9  floor is evaporating? Everyone is now controlled

         10  mechanically.

         11                 Morale is dropping rapidly. Tension

         12  and stress-related illnesses are on the rise because

         13  no one can talk out their matters harmoniously

         14  between each other anymore.

         15                 The only sole objective has become to

         16  get it corrected and get paid. So, productivity is

         17  now threatened as well. Our members become obsessed

         18  with the clock, forsaking the best they would give

         19  the product, paid or unpaid.

         20                 Approximately 30 to 40 persons in DDC

         21  agency stood in line to receive Commissioners checks

         22  within weeks of this system going on line.

         23                 No joke. More demoralization. The

         24  agency, by law, moved to compensate members for

         25  their two weeks of labor. But who assisted the
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          2  member in the interruption of bill payments tied to

          3  their direct deposit payroll transactions?

          4                 In my role as the grievance

          5  representative for DDC, and I partner that with my

          6  colleague Jon Forster, a 700-member agency, I've

          7  already received three disciplinary cases -- I've

          8  already resolved three disciplinary cases to a

          9  successful and speedy end, regarding this issue,

         10  because of the agency's poor system of tracking,

         11  mechanical difficulties and untimely follow-up of

         12  member matters by payroll and time keeping

         13  personnel.

         14                 These additional steps, chasing down

         15  time keepers for direct resolution, have never been

         16  the immediate responsibility of the member. Such

         17  actions have always been expedited through the

         18  supervisor. So, the team concept has been lost.

         19                 Then it was the personal put down.

         20  Many of our members have had to endure, due to a

         21  visual separation, two tiers of workers; over the

         22  cap and under the cap. Having reference to SLA

         23  standards, overtime entitlements and specific

         24  contract provisions.

         25                 The failure of the City to
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          2  communicate with the local, created such an

          3  uncomfortable member-to-member environment, many

          4  members even to this day believe that they are being

          5  discriminated against.

          6                 Finally, and closing, let me finish

          7  up just as I began. Why has our presumption of

          8  innocence as hard-working and productive workers,

          9  taxpayers, vanished? People need to be managed, not

         10  controlled.

         11                 Thank you all for listening to us

         12  today, and a special appreciation to Councilperson

         13  Addabbo, for making this forum happen. We know that

         14  you are listening.

         15                 MS. McCARTHY: Good afternoon. I'm

         16  employed at the New York City Department of Design

         17  and Construction, DDC, as a staff analyst. My name

         18  is Cecelia McCarthy.

         19                 Okay, I'll start again. My name is

         20  Cecelia McCarthy, the organization of Staff

         21  Analysts, OSA, Chapter Chair at DDC. And I am

         22  employed at DDC as a staff analyst.

         23                 I'm also the spokesperson for the DDC

         24  Labor Coalition, which includes on site

         25  representatives from the organization staff
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          2  analysts, DC 37, Local 154, DC 37, Local 375, DC 37,

          3  Local 1113, DC 37, Local 1549, and CWA Local 1180.

          4  I'm also a member of the DDC Safety Health

          5  Committee, a joint Labor Management Committee, which

          6  deals with safety and health problems at DDC.

          7                 Union members at DDC are very

          8  concerned about the safety and health issues related

          9  to the use of the biometric palm scanner, also know

         10  as the City Time Collection Data Device, DCD. I

         11  informed DDC management in August 2006 that an OSA

         12  member had reported she had received a shock on one

         13  finger while using a DCD, which created a mark on

         14  the finger, and also caused numbness and swelling.

         15                 Although management reported that the

         16  machine was inspected and found no problems, the

         17  fact remained that the employee advised that she had

         18  actually been shocked three times.

         19                 I requested that Gyah Mihia

         20  (phonetic), the DC 37 representative and the Union

         21  Chair of the DDC Safety and Health Committee include

         22  an agenda, on the agenda for the September 14th,

         23  2006 meeting this issue. And another employees

         24  complaint about developing a wart on his scanning

         25  hand. And his concern that the unsanitary condition
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          2  of the hand scanners may be a direct and probable

          3  cause.

          4                 Management could not explain why this

          5  employee received a shock, and claimed that these

          6  data DCDs are cleaned daily, and that they would

          7  look into providing other sanitizing products other

          8  than just Purell hand sanitizer, since I advised

          9  that some employees can be allergic to Purell.

         10  However, no other sanitizer has been made available

         11  to employees at DDC.

         12                 The next incident involving a health

         13  hazard related to the use of the data collection

         14  device occurred in September 2006, when I informed

         15  DDC management about, in order for an employee to

         16  scan in on a DCD, the employee removed a bandage

         17  from the hand which was supposed to be scanned in,

         18  because the DCD would not recognize the employee

         19  with the bandage on.

         20                 The employee, who scanned in after

         21  the employee, advised the employee had a cut on the

         22  finger, and then after removing the bandage the

         23  employee used the scanner.

         24                 The obvious health concern here is

         25  that other employees who scanned in after the first
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          2  employee who removed the bandage were exposed to

          3  possible health hazard. DDC was asked, what action

          4  can DDC take to clean and sanitize these data

          5  collection devices to avoid problems like this?

          6  DDC's management response, after checking with both

          7  City Time personnel and DDC's facilities personnel,

          8  is that according to City Time, and the condition of

          9  an injury, swelling, et cetera, and the size of the

         10  bandage could affect the definition of the finger

         11  imprint for purposes of registering the hand scan.

         12                 If the injury is likely to be for a

         13  length of time, the employee should see his or her

         14  supervisor and time keeping for purposes of

         15  reregistering his or her hand to include the

         16  bandage.

         17                 If the injury in the use of the

         18  bandage is to be short term, the employee is

         19  supposed to see his manager and have time keeping

         20  log him or her out, in and out, until the injury is

         21  healed.

         22                 As to the health-related question,

         23  that would be handled on a case-by-case basis. The

         24  employee following the one with the cut should

         25  contact someone in the facilities unit on the fourth
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          2  floor, so the unit can be cleaned.

          3                 Other people following in line should

          4  go to another scanner. My follow-up response was, it

          5  indicated that the main responsibility for

          6  notification about the problem is placed by DDC on

          7  its employees, while DDC, is the employer, has the

          8  main responsibility for maintaining a safe and

          9  health workplace.

         10                 The main problem remains that there

         11  needs to be a way that the DCD can be cleaned and

         12  sanitized after each use by an employee. I inquire

         13  about what solution DDC could offer to ensure that

         14  these data collection devices are properly cleaned

         15  and sanitized to avoid a potential health hazard due

         16  to the spread of germs, and whether DDC can offer

         17  plastic gloves in a dispenser next to each DCD as an

         18  option for employees to use before using the DCD.

         19                 Since I did not receive a response to

         20  my follow-up questions regarding this matter, I

         21  requested that Ghia Mihia, the DC 37 representative,

         22  and the union chair of the DDC Safety and Health

         23  Committee, include this issue on the agenda for the

         24  December 20th, 2006 meeting.

         25                 Management requested that this issue
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          2  be taken off the table, due to pending litigation.

          3  Apparently this litigation refers to the Office of

          4  Collective Bargaining hearings held related to City

          5  Time, following an improper practice petition filed

          6  by the Civil Service Technical Guild, Local 375,

          7  AFSCME.

          8                 Therefore, DDC management will not

          9  respond to health and safety issues like this one

         10  for this reason. That's their position, they will

         11  not respond to any health and safety issues dealing

         12  with these hand scanners, or DCDs, as they're

         13  called.

         14                 The second issue: Union members at

         15  DDC are also very concerned about the potential

         16  identity theft issues related to the use of the

         17  biometric palm print scanner, also known as the City

         18  Time data collection device and the City Time

         19  system. I advised DDC management in October 2006

         20  that I had been informed that a number of DDC

         21  employees had recently been the victims of identity

         22  theft. I inquired if this was related to the

         23  utilization of City Time system at DDC.

         24                 What were the reasons for this recent

         25  problem? How many employees were involved, and what
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          2  affirmative steps can DDC take to correct this

          3  problem?

          4                 Their main response on November 1st,

          5  2006 was that ..."all cases involving identity theft

          6  are referred to the Department of Investigation...",

          7  and I could contact them directly regarding such

          8  cases.

          9                 Then DDC's General Counsel, after I

         10  got my response from management, sent out on

         11  November 1st, 2006, an agency-wide e-mail and an

         12  attached memo to DDC regarding identity theft, in

         13  which he stated that he was writing to let everyone

         14  know that during the month of October, 2006, some

         15  employees had come forward and advised they had been

         16  the victims of identity theft.

         17                 As the spokesperson of the Labor

         18  Coalition of DDC, I requested that DDC management

         19  provide detailed information regarding the impact of

         20  this problem on DDC bargaining unit employees,

         21  including any information related to whether DDC had

         22  contacted City Time administration, to find out if

         23  there is any connection between the utilization of

         24  City Time at DDC and this recent identity theft

         25  problem.
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          2                 The only response from DDC management

          3  was, ..."that the issues of identity theft have been

          4  forwarded to DOI..." And that we can contact DOI

          5  regarding any questions.

          6                 Therefore, this issue of potential

          7  identity theft being related to the use of City Time

          8  remains an open question which has not been

          9  answered. We're requesting that this Committee

         10  thoroughly review all the above safety and health

         11  issues and potential identity theft issues related

         12  to the use of the biometric palm print scanner, also

         13  known as DCD, and the City Time system. We would

         14  appreciate any support which this Committee and the

         15  City Council can offer to review these issues, which

         16  concern our union members and also take affirmative

         17  steps to eliminate the use of the biometric palm

         18  print scanner, also known as the City Time data

         19  collection device at DDC.

         20                 Thank you for affording you this

         21  opportunity to address you today.

         22                 MR. VEGA: Good afternoon. My name is

         23  Ronaldo Vega. I'm an architect. I work for the

         24  City's Department of Design and Construction. I'm

         25  the second person you're hearing from today that
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          2  actually has to deal with this monstrosity.

          3                 I want to say that this is really not

          4  a union issue. This is a human issue. This is about

          5  disrespecting a group of people, who for no fault of

          6  their own, for the luck of the draw they make a

          7  little less than somebody else. So, think about it.

          8  Think about the fact that these good City workers,

          9  these honorable, civil servants, who probably gave

         10  up a good salary in the private sector to become

         11  architects for the City and engineers for the City,

         12  but who love what they do, who when the towers came

         13  down responded in droves and brought the City back

         14  in nine months, who when the wall collapsed on the

         15  Riverside Drive, our members were there. We didn't

         16  ask any questions. We picked up a phone and we

         17  showed up, and we left our families behind and we

         18  stayed 24 hours 7 until the job was done. Nobody

         19  asked us to put our hand in the machine then.

         20                 What we're trying to tell you now is,

         21  the people I work with, DDC, and in my other life as

         22  a private architect, I had this misconception, this

         23  stereotype of what City workers are. Now that I work

         24  for the City and I work among these fine people, I

         25  can tell you, those stereotypes fall apart.

                                                            57

          1  CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  Everybody wants to work. Everybody wants to be

          3  fulfilled in the work they do. Nobody is stealing

          4  time. Nobody. If anything, we're donating time like

          5  crazy to the City. And even then when we tell them,

          6  look, it takes me an hour to figure out to log in a

          7  two-hour lunchbreak because I had to take my kid to

          8  school, they say, oh, then you're misleading the

          9  time sheet because you're not putting in the actual

         10  time you left, because it took me an hour to figure

         11  it out, and I don't have to use the biometric

         12  scanner. I'm above the cap. That makes me special.

         13  That means I can be trusted. But someone who is

         14  making a thousand less than me, they can't be

         15  trusted. Oh my God. These are the people that we

         16  trusted with the safety of the City, but we can

         17  trust them to put in the correct time on a time

         18  sheet. It's an embarrassment.

         19                 There is no need for this biometric

         20  scanner. None whatsoever. The system works, albeit

         21  it's in its infancy, and it has all these glitches.

         22  It will work. We'll make it work. We're architects

         23  and engineers. Somehow we'll figure it out. But

         24  right now it's got a lot of problems. The biggest

         25  problem is the hand scanner, which is totally
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          2  unnecessary. It segregates us. I don't have to do

          3  it, and in the beginning I said, so what's the big

          4  deal. I don't have to do it. A lot of my co-workers

          5  don't have to do it. Then one day I came back from

          6  the mens room and there were three or four of my

          7  coworkers, I can't tell you how highly respected

          8  they are, I mean they just -- I walked to hell with

          9  them and back, these people are just like the

         10  highest level civil servants you could ever imagine,

         11  and I went to open the door for them to let them

         12  out, and they wouldn't come through. I'm saying,

         13  what's going on. You know, I feel like I'm holding

         14  the door for an hour. They had to put their hand in

         15  that machine. And the look on their faces, I almost

         16  cried. I can't not tell you how demoralized they

         17  were, how depressed they were. These are my brothers

         18  and sisters. I just lost an election in this union,

         19  so I'm going back to full time, I'm going to

         20  volunteer to put my hand in that machine. If my

         21  brothers and sisters have to ride at the back of the

         22  bus, I'm going to ride the back of the bus with

         23  them.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 MR. GALLETTA: Good afternoon,
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          2  Chairman Addabbo, members of the Committee. Thank

          3  you for the opportunity to give testimony and

          4  support to my colleagues in the Local 375. My name

          5  is Salvatore Galletta. I'm a Professional Engineer,

          6  and I represent the American Engineering Alliance,

          7  an organization founded in 1995 and dedicated to

          8  promoting and protecting the interest and welfare of

          9  all engineers, and the standing on the engineering

         10  profession for the purpose of better serving the

         11  public. We strongly support the efforts of our

         12  colleagues in Local 375 and their fight against the

         13  installation of palm scanners.

         14                 The members of Local 375 are highly

         15  skilled technical professionals who keep the City

         16  running. The ranks of the local consist of

         17  engineers, architects, scientists and other

         18  technical professionals. They deserve to be treated

         19  with respect and recognition for the critical work

         20  they do on behalf of all New Yorkers.

         21                 These palm scanners that the City

         22  intends to install in all City agencies is a slap in

         23  the face of these dedicated professional public

         24  servants. More importantly, such a measure is

         25  counter-productive in the efficiency of the
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          2  workforce.

          3                 The goal of management is to create a

          4  congenial and supportive environment that is

          5  conducive of the efficient operation of the work

          6  unit. Palm scanners create a hostile environment,

          7  not conducive to creative and productive work.

          8                 They also dedicate a great deal of

          9  resources and time to counterproductive endeavor

         10  that will harm the efficiency of the work.

         11                 Besides being intrusive, palm

         12  scanners and other biometric readers have the

         13  potential for abuse, as have been pointed out by my

         14  colleagues earlier.

         15                 There is always a tendency to use a

         16  new technology in ways not originally intended.

         17  Scanners have the capacity to track an individual's

         18  movement through the use of trackable IDs, the

         19  infrared cards that were mentioned earlier.

         20                 Such monitoring of an individual

         21  represents an erosion of personal freedom.

         22                 Traditionally professionals were

         23  never required to punch a time clock. The palm

         24  scanner is an updated high-tech version of the time

         25  clock. The use of palm scanners and other biometric
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          2  readers are demeaning to everyone, especially the

          3  skilled professionals of Local 375. And their

          4  introduction would lead to a deterioration of the

          5  professional environment, which is so essential to

          6  maintaining a highly motivated professional

          7  workforce.

          8                 The implementation of these biometric

          9  reading devices will surely lead to a big brother

         10  environment, and the inevitable hostilities been

         11  employees and management, and this surely is not

         12  good for either the City or the employment or the

         13  management.

         14                 Productivity, as well as creativity,

         15  the Hallmark of a professional will suffer.

         16  Although we object to palm scanners being used for

         17  professional employees out of principle, we also

         18  object to them being used for any City employee,

         19  professional or otherwise.

         20                 We therefore urge you, our

         21  distinguished colleagues in the City Council, to

         22  rethink the introduction of palm scanners and other

         23  biometric readers in City agencies.

         24                 We do not oppose the introduction of

         25  this new technology. However, any new technology
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          2  must respect the individual's right of privacy and

          3  its personal freedom. It must also be cost effective

          4  in that it leads to greater efficiencies in an

          5  environment that is conducive to higher creativity.

          6                 In closing, we urge that this

          7  distinguished body of professionals to think of the

          8  negative impact these scanners will have on the work

          9  environment of those other highly skilled

         10  professionals of Local 375 and do the right thing

         11  buy them.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

         14  much.

         15                 I just want to say, you know, this

         16  panel has brought out the issue of the unfairness

         17  and inequity that our workers have to go through

         18  with regards to these hand scanners, and that's a

         19  major concern for me. All City workers I like to

         20  think are dedicated, and this is less about time

         21  keeping, it's turning into more about supervision.

         22  And the unfairness of the different levels of

         23  supervision, obviously, is a major concern for me.

         24                 This Committee, toward the tail end

         25  of 2006, held a hearing about work place violence,
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          2  also workplace illnesses, workplace health-related

          3  issues, and now that is another issue with regard to

          4  this hand scanner. And you brought this up in your

          5  testimony, that between the warts and the shocking,

          6  and obviously the other issues that we talked about

          7  with these hand scanners health-related-wise leads

          8  us, again, in the direction of taking a serious look

          9  at these hand scanners, which, again, are proving to

         10  be, you know, probably not a necessity for the City.

         11  So, that's another reason why we obviously should

         12  look into these issues. And, again, I appreciate

         13  your time and testimony today.

         14                 We have a statement, I understand,

         15  from Council Member Jackson.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you,

         17  Mr. Chair, and thank you for the opportunity to

         18  participate in this hearing, even though I'm not a

         19  member of the Committee. And I was listening to the

         20  testimony of part of the previous panel in this

         21  panel, and I must congratulate all of the employees

         22  for, one, coming here today and testifying on this

         23  very important issue; and number two, in

         24  representing members like you do.

         25                 And it came home to me when the
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          2  third, the gentleman there in the middle mentioned

          3  about the collapse of the wall on Riverside Drive,

          4  because that's three blocks from my house and right

          5  in the middle of my district, and I knew the impact

          6  that that had on our community, and I believe you

          7  are absolutely correct, they didn't ask you to scan

          8  your hand when you put in continuous work all

          9  weekend and for over a week in order to clear that

         10  work up.

         11                 So, first, let me just thank you on

         12  behalf of all the people that I represent in

         13  Northern Manhattan, who were impacted by that and by

         14  the hundreds of thousands of individuals who ride up

         15  and down the Henry Hudson Parkway.

         16                 And I've listened to the testimony

         17  with respects to the negative impacts of this hand

         18  scanning device from a health point of view, and

         19  otherwise, but it was my understanding that this is

         20  a matter that is negotiated in the contract, and

         21  that was not agreed to; am I correct? Can anyone

         22  answer that?

         23                 MS. NG: Well, we are being told that

         24  it's a non-negotiable item, but we believe so, so

         25  we're continuing to pursue that through the office
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          2  of collective bargaining.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: As far as

          4  your union and your attorneys, you do believe that

          5  is a negotiable item?

          6                 MS. NG: Absolutely. Absolutely.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Because time

          8  keeping, time keeping is a negotiated item; is that

          9  correct?

         10                 MS. NG: Absolutely.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: And basically

         12  they're doing this for time keeping purposes; is

         13  that correct?

         14                 MS. NG: That's what we've been told,

         15  to make time keeping a little more accurate, and

         16  make sure people get information a little bit

         17  faster.

         18                 But as has been previously testified

         19  to, it's just the opposite. It's creating far more

         20  problems.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I read in the

         22  briefing documents that the City has already spent

         23  about $200 million to implement some form of hand

         24  scanning throughout the various agencies.

         25                 MS. NG: I think our attorney will get
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          2  to some of those figures, but let me just say, too,

          3  that this is the gift that keeps on giving, because

          4  once those palm scanners get installed, you're still

          5  talking about maintenance of which the agencies are

          6  doing --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I'm sorry, I

          8  don't understand what that means.

          9                 MS. NG: That's if there's a problem.

         10  If there's a breakdown they have to continue to fix

         11  it over and over again. Maintenance of the

         12  particular system.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Oh, okay.

         14  Well, I just wanted to comment on the situation that

         15  there are individuals, such as myself, who do

         16  appreciate what you do on behalf of the people of

         17  New York City, and I understand as a labor

         18  representative, I worked 22 years for a labor union,

         19  so let me just tell everyone right now that I do

         20  understand contracting and I've negotiated contracts

         21  and was an officer of a staff union, and I do know

         22  that time and attendance is a determined condition

         23  of employment as per contract negotiations.

         24                 I just wanted to express to you where

         25  I'm coming from overall, with respects to this
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          2  issue.

          3                 MS. NG: Thank you.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you,

          5  Mr. Chair.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you,

          7  Council Member Jackson.

          8                 Ms. Keller, you brought up an issue

          9  in your discussion in your testimony about how

         10  workers are now focused now so much possibly on

         11  their work but to an extent they are concerned and

         12  their focus is now shifted toward the health-related

         13  issues on the scanner, the fact that they have to

         14  use the scanner and it's a clock now. And I think

         15  the least the worker should think about is about

         16  that.

         17                 MS. NG: Sure.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: You know, we

         19  pride ourselves on our workers being dedicated and

         20  hard working as you had mentioned, you know, but the

         21  bottom line is, you know, the shifting now of this

         22  issue as being a focus for our workers is wrong. So,

         23  again, I'd like to work with this panel, as well as

         24  previous panels and future panels on this issue.

         25  Because, again, I think the least the workers have
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          2  to worry about is health-related issues regarding

          3  the hand scanner and about the clock, you know,

          4  obviously should be focused on the work. So, I do

          5  look forward to working with you.

          6                 MS. NG: Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

          8  much, to this panel, for their time and testimony.

          9                 Our next panel, Neal Tepel, President

         10  of the Civil Service and Merit Council, Rachel

         11  Minter, from Local 375, Tom Anderson, Organization

         12  of Staff Analysts, and Michael Kenny, Local 375.

         13                 MS. MINTER: Good afternoon. I'm

         14  Rachel Minter. I'm a labor lawyer who has

         15  represented unions for 25 years, and I am Counsel to

         16  Local 375, the Civil Service Technical Guild.

         17                 I have submitted detailed remarks,

         18  which are probably going to be much more detailed

         19  than you want. But lawyers are notoriously bad at

         20  self editing. And I also have a packet of materials

         21  that I lost custody of in the moment in the box over

         22  there that you will be given relating to some of the

         23  studies in the area of biometrics and our particular

         24  case that's pending at the Office of Collective

         25  Bargaining.
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          2                 The Chair and Council Member Jackson

          3  both alluded to the question of communication and

          4  bargaining. And unfortunately that's why we're at

          5  the Office of Collective Bargaining.

          6                 The City announced the hand-geometry

          7  scanners as a fait accompli. It was not bargainable.

          8  They were going to unilaterally install them, which

          9  we believe is an improper practice under the City

         10  Collective Bargaining Law and we have filed two

         11  cases concerning the scanners at DDC and the

         12  preparations for voice recognition software for

         13  field employees at DHS.

         14                 Those particular cases are taking

         15  beyond a life beyond just the cases because they are

         16  being heard in a kind of vacuum of the case law.

         17  There is less than a handful of cases in either the

         18  private or the public sector that determine the

         19  employer's obligation to bargain with respect to

         20  putting biometric tracking technology into the

         21  workplace. So, as a result, our cases at OCB and the

         22  City Council hearing are actually being watched very

         23  closely by members of the Labor and Employment Bar,

         24  not only around the State but around the country,

         25  and this topic is so important that a number of very
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          2  important organizations, such as the American Bar

          3  Association, the State Bar, Labor Employment

          4  Section, the National Academy of Arbitrators, NYU

          5  Law School, are all, either just have had, or have

          6  upcoming programs dealing with the employer's

          7  obligation to bargain about biometrics.

          8                 So, this case is not only going to

          9  make new law at OCB, it's going to be something of a

         10  precedent in other parts of the country, and it's

         11  very important, as is the opportunity to testify

         12  before the Council today.

         13                 In answer to the question about why

         14  are they doing this, at first the Office of Labor

         15  Relations said it's because we're automating time

         16  and leave functions in City Time, and then, of

         17  course, it turned out that that's not really

         18  necessary, you can do electronic time sheets, and we

         19  got back the answer that Mr. Forster testified, it

         20  was a policy decision. And having spent about six

         21  months studying this issue, there are some very

         22  interesting studies and commentators writing about

         23  biometrics, and one of them talked about employers

         24  typically offering pre-text for instituting

         25  biometric tracking, and it says: "In order to avoid
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          2  the stigma of being perceived as engaging in

          3  excessive surveillance, some employers will rely on

          4  pre-text to justify the use of tracking technology."

          5  Pretext and secrecy are used to avoid a perception

          6  that the employer is using totalitarian tools or

          7  mistreating its employees, and that may very well

          8  have been the case here.

          9                 In terms, there has also been a great

         10  deal of study about the effect of morale on tracking

         11  technology in the workplace, and Ron Vegas spoke

         12  very movingly about what has been happening, and DDC

         13  employees have come and testified at OCB about the

         14  ways in which their life has changed. For example,

         15  someone whose sitter was late and would come in at a

         16  quarter after nine, but typically stayed til 6:00

         17  because they were finishing up a project or had a

         18  deadline, you know, the supervisor wasn't really

         19  concerned about the 15 minutes in the morning,

         20  because they got more than their days of work out of

         21  these employees.

         22                 Now we have City Time, people who are

         23  under the cap, stick their hand in this machine and

         24  it registers their time and it doesn't really want

         25  to hear about the two hours you spent last night
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          2  staying past 5:00 or the number of days you were out

          3  in the field and skipped lunch because the

          4  contractors were at the job site and they needed to

          5  talk to you. So that has been a C change in the

          6  morale and work environment at DDC.

          7                 Council Member Jackson is correct

          8  that time keeping is a mandatory subject of

          9  bargaining. Unfortunately, the City, obviously, does

         10  not agree with us, so that we are going to pursue

         11  the legal remedies.

         12                 But there are similar situations

         13  going on around the country. There have been

         14  situations with GPS out on Babylon, Long Island, in

         15  King County in the State of Washington. There are

         16  biometric scanners at the California Youth Authority

         17  and Public Relations Boards in California and

         18  Washington State both said you have to bargain with

         19  the union before you put this stuff in. And

         20  hopefully we will get the same result.

         21                 There was a question of the earlier

         22  panel about what is going to happen, and of course,

         23  ideally, OCB would say you would supposed to bargain

         24  about it first, so stop using them and take them

         25  away. That may be perhaps an idealized version of
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          2  what's going to happen, but that is, in fact, what

          3  the law would say.

          4                 But this issue with tracking is going

          5  on all over the place. When we talk about a slippery

          6  slope of tracking, that is not just a slogan, it is

          7  a very serious issue that is now suddenly being

          8  scrutinized carefully and closely, as we are doing

          9  today.

         10                 I've made reference in my materials,

         11  which probably nobody will read, but to all the

         12  studies and the other cases and the resources,

         13  having now spent six months studying this, there is

         14  quite a lot of interesting commentary out there. But

         15  I'm very appreciative of the fact that the City

         16  Council is looking at this issue, because it's a

         17  serious one. Thank you.

         18                 MR. TEPEL: Good afternoon, members of

         19  the New York City Council, Civil Service and Labor

         20  Committee. My name is Neal Tepel. I am President of

         21  the Civil Service Merit Council, representing

         22  municipal unions in City government.

         23                 There is increasing concern that the

         24  City is unnecessarily spending hundreds of millions

         25  of dollars for equipment that will replace an
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          2  inexpensive system of time keeping.

          3                 Besides the huge expansive software

          4  and maintenance contracts, each scanner unit costs

          5  tens of thousands of dollars. Hundreds of units may

          6  be needed to implement the wasteful projects. Many

          7  unions consider the new system a change in the terms

          8  and conditions of employment requiring discussion

          9  prior to installation of palm scanners. Since the

         10  City has refused negotiations or discussions

         11  regarding the implementation plan, legal initiatives

         12  are being planned in many unions and advocate

         13  organizations.

         14                 The palm scanners and City Time has

         15  created a rigid time-keeping procedure that has

         16  caused discontent in work locations and cheated City

         17  employees out of time and money as documented by

         18  Local 375 and other municipal unions.

         19                 The City Time software has many bugs

         20  and has caused enormous waste of time and effort.

         21  The program is rigid and difficult to use. There

         22  have been many problems that employees, supervisors

         23  and time keepers must continually resolve manually.

         24                 The system still cannot process

         25  overtime without a handwritten time card and a
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          2  six-weeks delay in payment to employees.

          3                 Many in the City's workforce are

          4  fearful that the scanners are being placed in

          5  agencies to track them, since the device does not

          6  handle security at all. Scanners have the ability to

          7  follow the employees through the work site at all

          8  times. Hand-geometry scanners, which have already

          9  been installed at the Department of Design and

         10  Construction in Long Island City, and at the

         11  Department of Homeless Services have nothing to do

         12  with site security. Very important. Very important

         13  item.

         14                 The devices are positioned within the

         15  facilities at these agencies, and are used by

         16  employees only after they already have swiped key

         17  cards for security reasons. In addition, the City

         18  has now announced it is researching the use of voice

         19  identification systems for personnel that call in

         20  their time from off-site locations.

         21                 The hands, the hand-punch units take

         22  a reading of the unique shape of each employee's

         23  hand when they clock in and out, and it's clearly

         24  unsanitary.

         25                 There is growing concern across the
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          2  country with the use of biometric technology that

          3  automatically identifies people based on physical or

          4  behavioral characteristics. Civil liberties

          5  advocates consider it dangerous and an improper use

          6  of government power.

          7                 In spite of concerns, the City's

          8  Office of Payroll Administration is in the process

          9  of installing the readers in municipal agencies.

         10                 The time, the City Time project

         11  developed by defense contractor SAIC for a start-up

         12  cost of $240 million, has the capacity to time stamp

         13  and track municipal employees by the use of

         14  biometric hand-scanners, voice print recognition

         15  systems, GPS in City vehicles, cell phones, and

         16  other high-tech monitoring devices. It opens a door

         17  in a world where personal privacy is eliminated.

         18  Clearly this system sends the wrong message to

         19  public employees.

         20                 MR. ANDERSON: Mr. Chairman, members

         21  of the Committee, Mr. Jackson, I'm pleased to be

         22  here today. I have been a taxpayer for 47 years.

         23  I've been a civil servant for 40 years.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I'm sorry, just

         25  please state your name for the record, please.

                                                            77

          1  CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2                 MR. ANDERSON: Oh. My name is Tom

          3  Anderson. I'm the Vice Chairman of the Organization

          4  of Staff Analysts.

          5                 I've been using time clocks for 45

          6  years, a civil servant for 40 years, and the New

          7  York City employee for 38 years. I've been a union

          8  officer for 19 years. In that time I've watched what

          9  happens with time clocks and with a great deal of

         10  fascination.

         11                 The one thing which I should point

         12  out to you which should be clear to every one of

         13  you, particularly if you've had any time being a

         14  factory foreman, or worked in a factory, is that a

         15  time card system, or a time system, must be fast

         16  because employees inevitably arrive in a state of

         17  disarray, having gotten off the subway, or having

         18  coped with child care and all the rest, and they

         19  want to get into work quickly. They don't want to

         20  spend a lot of time worrying about getting in.

         21                 It has to be absolutely accurate,

         22  because otherwise they have fights with their

         23  superiors over how they're going to get paid.

         24                 It has to be convenient. The time

         25  cards which we've used for 45 years, to my
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          2  recollection, and I know they must have existed long

          3  before that, meet all those requirements. You pull

          4  it off the rack, you stand in line, and it takes you

          5  about 35 seconds to get into your building. The time

          6  forum has the material on it, and it's neat and

          7  clean and it's orderly. A time keeper would then

          8  summarize. Now we have substituted City Time, which

          9  when it finally is operating accurately, will cut

         10  out the middle men there and keep accurate time. If

         11  it doesn't, it will fall because we, the unions,

         12  will help make it fall.

         13                 But we now come down to the hand

         14  scanners. A) people really, really dislike them. I

         15  can tell you I have gotten a large number of phone

         16  calls from a large number of agencies, some of whom

         17  have only heard rumors that some day they're going

         18  to cope with them. This is a problem for me.

         19                 The second thing that I have to say

         20  about that is that the time, as implemented, the

         21  palm scanners require our City employees to enter a

         22  ten-digit number.

         23                 Now, exactly how, after coping with

         24  the City's subway system, trapsing across the City

         25  to get your kid into child care, and worrying about
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          2  things, are you going to accurately put in time

          3  after time a ten-digit number.

          4                 I occasionally make a mistake dialing

          5  my daughter in Seattle, and when that happens

          6  there's a line of people behind me, all of whom are

          7  angry because, oh, Tom did it again. And some of

          8  them will be late, because if there are enough of

          9  them, and there are not enough of these scanners,

         10  there will be people who are late. This is a bad

         11  conception right off.

         12                 So, for those two reasons, I am

         13  definitely opposed. City Time was implemented

         14  originally with a card reader system. Card readers

         15  are really simple devices. Not much more difficult

         16  to imagine than a time clock. They're cheap. I can

         17  pick them up at computer fairs for 20, 30 dollars,

         18  they can function once plugged into a computer

         19  system. They work very well in agencies which have

         20  tried them, and that, gentlemen, I think is what the

         21  problem is, and why we've got the hand-scanners, the

         22  card readers, the time clocks are too damn cheap.

         23  They're not providing a big enough profit for

         24  someone, and I do hope City Council will look into

         25  that issue very carefully. There is no reason why
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          2  our employees have to be made unhappy. Why they have

          3  to have unreasonable delays and get angry at one

          4  another.

          5                 I will say one other thing, with 45

          6  years of service in various places, that on days

          7  when I'm happy I work very well. On days when I'm

          8  unhappy, I don't work as well. On days when I'm mad

          9  at my employer because I think that there's been

         10  something undignified in the way I've been treated,

         11  I am very, very unhappy.

         12                 I should also say, from my union

         13  experience, that I have rarely come across instances

         14  of the so-called buddy swiping. I would like someone

         15  to actually look at and see what the actual figures

         16  are because I have seen precious few disciplinary

         17  hearings on that score from my unions. I worked for

         18  371 for many years, for six years, and then I worked

         19  for OSA for 12, and I see very, very few grievances.

         20                 I do know what our grievance

         21  representatives say to the employee in such a

         22  situation. I can't say it here because there are

         23  expletives involved. But we certainly add a

         24  reprimand to whatever has happened, and then we go

         25  and try to save their job. But, gentlemen, we don't
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          2  do this every day of the week. We certainly couldn't

          3  do this every day of the week, and it is basically a

          4  straw man that has been developed to create a need,

          5  just like any other piece of advertising. We want

          6  you to spend your money. You really need it because

          7  there is this terrible problem. The pool table, you

          8  see. It's the pool table.

          9                 No, sir, gentlemen. This is one issue

         10  that I think you should consider.

         11                 MR. KENNY: Good afternoon. My name is

         12  Michael Kenny, and I work for the Department of

         13  Design and Construction. I'm also the Health and

         14  Safety Chair for Local 375.

         15                 I come here today to tell you I'm one

         16  of the guys that personally had time taken away from

         17  me using City Time. I work in the field. I was put

         18  on a shift with one-hour lunch. But in the field if

         19  something arises, you don't have an hour lunch, take

         20  a half an hour lunch, you're allowed to do that. On

         21  two occasions I had a half an hour lunch. I worked

         22  my seven hours, and the way City Time makes you fill

         23  in the time, you have to show the hour. So, you

         24  would put in an hour as overtime, working through

         25  lunch, and put in a half an hour for comp time at
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          2  the end of the day for leaving early. But because

          3  you can't make a half an hour comp time in a week,

          4  they would deduct a half an hour comp time from your

          5  bank, and they would take the half an hour that you

          6  worked through lunch as your lunchtime, and wouldn't

          7  compensate you. So, they would take an hour away

          8  from you. That happened to me twice. It isn't going

          9  to happen to me ever again.

         10                 Also, I approve time sheets for

         11  people in the office and for the field staff, and

         12  what I see personally, is people get punished for

         13  being late, and there's no way they get compensated

         14  for staying beyond. And it's just wrong. And it

         15  makes people sit at their desk and twiddle their

         16  thumbs until their time is up and they go and punch

         17  out.

         18                 It's just not right. I've been with

         19  the City for 20 years, and morale and productivity

         20  is definitely down, and that's all I have to say.

         21  Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

         23  much.

         24                 Lack of flexibility obviously is an

         25  issue, and this panel brought it up very good. You
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          2  know, it's almost like we're battling the City Time

          3  versus real time, the real time that you work or

          4  take the half-hour lunches, and obviously real time

          5  is more accurate to an extent.

          6                 How many cases do you think that we

          7  have here as far as workers like yourself -- it's

          8  Mr. Kenny, correct?

          9                 MR. KENNY: Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: How many workers

         11  do you think like yourself have that situation where

         12  they took a half hour lunch, or even the overtime

         13  situation? Do you think it's numerous? And anybody

         14  can jump in, from your co-workers, or you said you

         15  sign off on time sheets as well?

         16                 MR. KENNY: Well, today before I came

         17  here I approved time sheets. And I had one fellow,

         18  he was late nine minutes at one time, and he was

         19  late 17 minutes another day. He worked two

         20  additional hours that are uncompensated. But they're

         21  going to dock him for 17 minutes and nine minutes,

         22  even though he put in two full hours. It's

         23  uncompensated.

         24                 I went over to him, we tried to

         25  figure out how to get it compensated for him, and it
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          2  just was impossible. After spending, Friday I talked

          3  to him about it, and today this morning.

          4                 So, I didn't approve his time sheets

          5  because I'm waiting for my boss to come in to talk

          6  to him tomorrow. But that was just one incident that

          7  happened, because usually the field staff are

          8  allowed to take a half an hour lunch, they're on a

          9  half an hour lunch.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: So, you're

         11  saying there are no ways to even correct the

         12  inaccuracies that exist, in this particular

         13  situation.

         14                 MR. KENNY: I tried on Friday

         15  afternoon to do it with him, and this morning I

         16  didn't have time to go through it again so I just

         17  left it there.

         18                 He tried all day on Friday and just

         19  came up red lined. So I have to see about it. But

         20  that's just one person.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: That's

         22  unfortunate. I'm sure there are many more cases out

         23  there, obviously, amongst our City workforce, and I

         24  thank you for bringing that out.

         25                 Ms. Minter, thank you for your time
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          2  and testimony. And, again, this lawsuit is obviously

          3  quite interesting and important. You have brought

          4  out a very important issue. The fact that this is

          5  not just a City issue, ladies and gentlemen, we are

          6  talking about a statewide, to an extent a nationwide

          7  issue here, as this issue of invasion of privacy

          8  and, you know, time keeping methods become an issue,

          9  it is a statewide and nationwide issue.

         10                 What is the time line for the case,

         11  in your estimation? When would we hear something

         12  about the pending litigation?

         13                 MS. MINTER: Well, we have a slight

         14  setback, because when we announced the advent of the

         15  voice recognition at the Department of Homeless

         16  Services, which is a whole step up on the

         17  technological continuum of intrusiveness, we

         18  indicated that we were going to file a petition on

         19  that agency and ask that they be consolidated with

         20  the case on DDC, which is being done, but the City,

         21  they are not anxious to have resolution of this, for

         22  obvious reasons. They say, well, now that you've

         23  consolidated them, we want the whole case in before

         24  we were going to put any evidence, and they were due

         25  to present their rebuttal case on DDC. So, it's
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          2  being pushed back. I don't think hearings will start

          3  again in February.

          4                 At one point there was some question

          5  that we might have a decision by May, more

          6  informally because I'm speaking at the National

          7  Academy Program in May in San Francisco on Biometric

          8  Technologies, and since I'm handling the case, it's

          9  possible that somebody is going to ask me a question

         10  about how it's going, and the question will either

         11  be there is a decision the City is appealing, there

         12  is a decision we're appealing, or we filed it last

         13  August and we haven't gotten a decision yet. So, I

         14  don't know.

         15                 Long answer to a short question.

         16  Sorry.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: It's okay, and

         18  I'd like to keep in touch with you regarding this

         19  litigation, because it's an important piece of the

         20  puzzle in this situation.

         21                 During your discovery or during your

         22  investigative work with this issue, the cost factor

         23  becomes an issue. How much the City is spending

         24  regarding these hand scanners and the actual system.

         25  The number has been thrown out over $200 million.
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          2  That's an accurate number?

          3                 MS. MINTER: Yes, for software. It

          4  took several months, actually, of rather stubborn

          5  research. I was the one who actually found the

          6  information on Vendex eventually, and there is a

          7  contract for 185,000 for CityTime and the other one

          8  I believe is 65. Don't quote me on the math. We have

          9  copies. And that is only software. And that is for

         10  SAIC.

         11                 Then I found a small company called

         12  Paradigm 4 who had another I think $60,000 contract.

         13  All software. I have not found the contracts for the

         14  Ingersol Rand Hand Punch 4000. Although industry

         15  estimates are it's about 2,000 to 3,000 per scanner,

         16  but I can't confirm that. I have not found a shred

         17  of evidence about that contract.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Really?

         19                 MS. MINTER: But presumably you have

         20  more power to find it than I do.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Would the issue

         22  of how the City contracted out this particular

         23  system, both software and hand scanner equipment,

         24  would that be an issue on how the City actually

         25  contracted out this?
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          2                 MS. MINTER: In terms of the entire

          3  practice I think it touches on it, because since

          4  they had already committed sizeable resources to the

          5  project, they clearly never had any intention of

          6  bargaining with the union anyway. So, in that

          7  respect I think it does touch on it.

          8                 I don't know that legally we have a

          9  right to object to the City wasting money. I'm the

         10  City taxpayer. I object. But, you know, Local 375

         11  doesn't have standing to say what a ridiculous waste

         12  of money. So, probably not.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: It is a concern.

         14  Obviously the cost is a concern. We have priorities

         15  here in the City and we all could list them,

         16  education and public safety and so forth. Hand

         17  scanners to me, I don't know if it's even in the top

         18  ten.

         19                 That being said, I'm also concerned

         20  about how the City contracted out the system, if it

         21  was done in a fair way. Obviously that's an issue

         22  that needs to be discussed as well.

         23                 But, again, I look forward to working

         24  with you. And, again, keeping in touch with you on

         25  the time line. And to the workers, thank you for
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          2  your dedication and hard work, but also keep in

          3  touch because this is an issue that obviously needs

          4  to be addressed.

          5                 So, thank you very much for your time

          6  and testimony today.

          7                 MS. MINTER: Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Our next panel,

          9  Dennis Colson, Local 375. Barry Schwartz. James

         10  Ruchalski, and William Lindauer.

         11                 I want to thank you all for being

         12  here today. Please state your name for the record

         13  and your affiliation, and give your testimony,

         14  please.

         15                 MR. RUCHALSKI: I'm Jim Ruchalski. I

         16  work for the Department of Design and Construction.

         17  And all I want to bring up is, I've already received

         18  two commissioners checks. I've done my City time the

         19  way it should be done, and the first commissioner

         20  check I have received, I was told that I received it

         21  in error, which I kind of live paycheck to paycheck

         22  and I depend on my direct electronic deposits for my

         23  paychecks, and when I receive a commissioners check

         24  it really caused a lot of havoc with my finances,

         25  bounced checks, bank fees, things like that. And
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          2  then I received another commissioners check, just

          3  last week I believe it was, last paycheck, and I was

          4  told I got that because it was submitted late. It

          5  wasn't submitted late by me, it was submitted late

          6  by my supervisors, but, again, it causes a lot of

          7  scrambling on my part. And not many people know that

          8  facet of what City Time is doing. It's a very

          9  unforgiving system. And that's all I just wanted to

         10  bring up.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you for

         12  your time and for, again, putting a face on the

         13  issue.

         14                 MR. RUCHALSKI: Thank you.

         15                 MR. COLSON: Thank you, ladies and

         16  gentlemen of the Council. I am Dennis Colson. I am a

         17  delegate for Chapter 4 of Local 375 and employed by

         18  the Department of Design and Construction, since its

         19  inception 1996. An employee of the City for 22 years

         20  now.

         21                 I just want to try to point out, I'm

         22  not going to make a long statement, I just want to

         23  point out some of the problems that I have with the

         24  system. I have been locked out of the system where I

         25  have not been able to scan in for a week at a time,
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          2  and I constantly have to go back and forth to time

          3  keeping to have them put the time in manually. And

          4  this is e-mails going back and forth, phone calls

          5  and trips downstairs to the time keeping department.

          6  It's taken at least a week at a time to fix those

          7  problems.

          8                 The last time I testified at OCB for

          9  the hearing I had there, it took me three days to

         10  get the problem sorted out with time because they

         11  didn't know how to put it into the system, and it

         12  took my time keeper and another person from the

         13  Director of IFA, it took them three days to find a

         14  way to put it into the system. And I may have that

         15  problem again today, I'm not sure.

         16                 Two weeks ago I scanned out at 3:30

         17  in the afternoon, which is my normal time, which

         18  would be 15:27 hours. The system at that time

         19  scanned me back in at 15:27 hours, and I found out

         20  the next morning I was on the payroll for the entire

         21  night. And I'm still waiting for that check.

         22                 Last Thursday, I have a flex time

         23  from 7:30 to 8:30 in the morning, I came in,

         24  actually I was in my bureau at 8:20 in the morning,

         25  but one of the project managers asked me a question
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          2  about their project, so I actually didn't get a

          3  chance to scan in until 8:33. Now, we're supposed to

          4  have leeway seven minutes either way. I scanned out

          5  in the afternoon at 3:30 -- at 4:30, excuse me. The

          6  system, when I went in this morning to try to submit

          7  my time sheets, the system is telling me I'm short

          8  by three minutes, and I had to go back down to time

          9  keeping and ask them to make an adjustment. That

         10  took me, by the time they came in, it took me

         11  approximately two hours to get that straight. Now,

         12  that's time that I couldn't do my work.

         13                 And last, but not least, I think it

         14  was already testified to by Mr. Kenny, we are

         15  allowed if we work five straight hours in the field,

         16  you are allowed to take a half hour lunch, and where

         17  you can leave a half hour earlier in the afternoon.

         18  With this system, there is no way to do that. And I

         19  actually don't do it any more, because in addition

         20  to Mr. Kenny, I've also heard other stories of

         21  people that have been shortchanged time and we were

         22  told by the people at City Scan that you have to put

         23  in a leave slip for a half hour of comp time and it

         24  will equal itself out in the afternoon, but that's

         25  not what it's doing.
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          2                 What I will close by saying is I'm

          3  not sure the Committee is actually going to hear

          4  everything, all the problems with the system. There

          5  are other people at the agency who were not able to

          6  be here today. Some I believe, and I'm going to

          7  actually say I believe they're concerned about

          8  retaliation in this matter, but there are a lot of

          9  people who have had a lot of problems with time.

         10  They've been thrown out of the system. I know one

         11  particular person who has been knocked out of the

         12  system three times, and last time was just a couple

         13  of weeks ago, and after taking three weeks to get it

         14  straightened out, it lasted for four days, and she

         15  was knocked out again.

         16                 So, I think that the Committee should

         17  try, before they make a decision, I think they

         18  should try to find out from other people exactly

         19  what the situation is. Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you, Mr.

         21  Colson.

         22                 Just before we hear other testimony,

         23  I will offer this. If you know of any co-workers who

         24  could not have been here today, they can e-mail me,

         25  they can write to my office, and I'll take all
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          2  e-mails and correspondence, incorporate them into

          3  this hearing. So, again, if you do know of

          4  co-workers who cannot be with us today, or if

          5  somebody remembers another situation that, again,

          6  was not given as testimony today, they can reach out

          7  to me subsequent to today's hearing.

          8                 MR. COLSON: I will also add something

          9  else which was addressed, I think Councilman

         10  Seabrook asked earlier about the health matters. I

         11  really can't probe, but I know since we've been

         12  using this system, I've come down twice with the

         13  same form of viral infection after the using the

         14  system, in which I've never been sick with that

         15  before. I'm running high fevers and taking

         16  antibiotics. I just finished taking antibiotics from

         17  the last time. I just find it a very unusual

         18  coincidence that that's happening.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you.

         20                 MR. SCHWARTZ: Thank you, Councilman

         21  Addabbo, and Committee members. My name is Barry

         22  Schwartz. I'm a geologist and construction project

         23  manager at the Department of Design and

         24  Construction. I would just like to briefly touch

         25  base with something that was mentioned a little bit
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          2  earlier by one of the other panels in that the use

          3  of hand scanners is a form of discrimination across

          4  the board. It's a form particularly of economic

          5  discrimination. There's only non-managerial

          6  employees earning below a certain salary level, who

          7  are required to use the device. If such a device was

          8  allowed, which it shouldn't be, everyone should scan

          9  in, and not just pointing fingers at those who earn

         10  below a certain salary cap.

         11                 Nevertheless, in addition, it's

         12  professionally unacceptable for members of my local.

         13  I can't think of any geologist across the country in

         14  particular working for any company or any other

         15  municipality that has to scan in.

         16                 I've asked the American Institute of

         17  Professional Geologists if they're aware of this,

         18  and no consulting firm that they can think of has

         19  that.

         20                 Our equivalence in the private

         21  sector, those who were employed by the consultants

         22  and contractors we deal with directly at DDC do not

         23  have to do the same. I do not know of any of our

         24  contractors and consultants, equivalent to our

         25  titles, geologists and engineers, architects, that
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          2  use a hand scanner in their offices.

          3                 Perhaps hand scanners or punching in

          4  is appropriate in the industrial or manufacturing

          5  sector but it has no place with professional

          6  employees.

          7                 MR. LINDAUER: My name is Bill

          8  Lindauer. I'm an organizing community member of the

          9  New York Taxi Workers Alliance. I've been a New York

         10  City cab driver for 30 years plus. We at Taxi

         11  Workers Alliance are in solidarity with our brothers

         12  and sisters who oppose this obviously trash

         13  technology.

         14                 They are employees of the City, but

         15  what makes it works is what the City has in mind for

         16  us independent contractors.

         17                 This is a first step in igniting the

         18  flame of fascism. Once you ignite this flame, it's

         19  almost impossible to extinguish. An even more

         20  egregious example, a draconian nightmare is

         21  currently being foisted upon yellow cab drivers by

         22  the honchos of hoodwinking, those snake oil

         23  consultants at the runamuck agency, the TLC.

         24                 Incidentally, the TLC stands for

         25  Telling Lies Constantly. And I mean they do, because
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          2  look it up, as Casey Stagle said, first in 2004 we

          3  got a fare hike. They said we make 16 to 18 dollars

          4  an hour. This was the Chairman said this, Chairman

          5  Daus. Recently at a public hearing of the TLC he

          6  said we make $12 an hour and that's "adequate." You

          7  can look it up, as Casey said.

          8                 Anyway, their prohibitively expensive

          9  tyrannical tool called "GPS," Genuinely Pointless

         10  Buying, will run roughshot over the US Constitution.

         11                 This anti-American, born out of

         12  cronyism, collusion, and corruption, consumer fraud

         13  must be stopped.

         14                 The TLC's muddling bureaucrats are

         15  bamboozled by a boondoggle. Drivers are ready to

         16  walk. Hope you people are ready to walk. Does the

         17  City Council really want cabs sitting in garages,

         18  rather than on the street serving the public?

         19                 Strike a blow for freedom. Strike a

         20  blow for common sense, abolish absurdities.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

         22  much, Mr. Lindauer.

         23                 I want to thank this panel very much.

         24  Again, the time, what used to be before City Time

         25  was obviously a lot more flexible, a lot better, and
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          2  by the shaking of your heads yes, I tend to agree.

          3  So, again, I appreciate your time here. Time here is

          4  well spent. So, thank you very much for your time

          5  and testimony today. Thank you.

          6                 Our next panel, Fred Newton from

          7  Local 375. Harold Cohen from DC 37. Leonid Chrony,

          8  and M Lantis from Local 1180.

          9                 MR. LAMB: Is that Michael Lamb?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: That's what it

         11  is. Sorry, Mike. Again, I want to thank you all for

         12  being here today.

         13                 Fred, you start it off.

         14                 MR. NEWTON: Good afternoon. I thank

         15  Councilman Addabbo, and the other members, for

         16  having this Committee. I am the Chair of Local 375's

         17  Labor and Political Activities Committee. It's

         18  ending my second term. Previously Civil Service

         19  Chair. Also a delegate from my Chapter to the Local

         20  375.

         21                 I'll start with my prepared script.

         22  While recently visiting DDC at their Thompson Avenue

         23  Office, I observed the palm scanners. If a worker

         24  eats a sticky or gooey food on the way to work, what

         25  are the sanitary consequences for a worker who uses
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          2  the palm scanner after them?

          3                 What about a worker with AIDS and

          4  unaware of the fact they have AIDS who has a cut or

          5  open wound on their hand? Are there rules workers

          6  must watch their hands before using the palm

          7  scanners? A little deviation. If so, how far is the

          8  bathroom from the palm scanners? Do you lose ten

          9  minutes? Is there a big queue waiting in line where

         10  people wash their hands?

         11                 Would this or another appropriate

         12  City Council Committee be willing to receive, assess

         13  and analyze payroll problems as Local 375 en masses

         14  this data? Which we are in the process of doing,

         15  obviously.

         16                 I have heard about Local 375 members

         17  having to get paid with commissioners checks on

         18  several occasions while attending a union's delegate

         19  and/or executive board meetings. Local 375 considers

         20  this to be a signature issue, and seeks all possible

         21  support it can muster from legislators.

         22                 Those of you who follow unions

         23  activities and politics knows that Local 375 is in

         24  the thick of an election cycle. That being the case,

         25  I can and emphatically do stress that all rival
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          2  slates and competing political factions are in firm

          3  and solid agreement on this issue.

          4                 The palm scanners are a deplorable

          5  outrage and must become a thing of the past. The

          6  Civil Service Guild is preparing and will continue

          7  to prepare to fight this all the way.

          8                 One little addendum that I've heard

          9  in the testimonies before me, much has been said

         10  before. Another issue that Local 375 and other DC 37

         11  locals are concerned about is privatization,

         12  outsourcing.

         13                 One thing of particular curiosity to

         14  me, as it should be to others, is how much do

         15  private contractors have to use the palm scanners.

         16  And if not, the implications are very obvious, and

         17  I'll leave it at that and yield the balance of time

         18  for other testimonies or questions.

         19                 MR. LAMB: Thank you, Chairman

         20  Addabbo, members of the Committee. My name is

         21  Michael Lamb. I'm a staff rep with Local 1180. We

         22  represent some 9,000 administrative supervisors and

         23  managers throughout the various City agencies, and

         24  we have a number of members out at Design and

         25  Construction who we've been in contact and have
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          2  heard the same horror stories that have been

          3  articulated here this afternoon.

          4                 We thank you for hearing this issue,

          5  and appreciate the fact that you're willing to look

          6  into it.

          7                 You know, it's only in a venue like

          8  this that the impact of this horrendous system kind

          9  of comes to the fore. I heard from some of the

         10  architects out there at DDC, and the issues of

         11  commissioners checks and things of this nature. If

         12  you look at this issue and magnify it by the number

         13  of agencies this will ultimately impact, you can see

         14  a horror story in the making.

         15                 We need to abolish this thing

         16  immediately.

         17                 Now, City Time does have this other

         18  component to it that allows people to log in via the

         19  computer screens and things of that nature. I think

         20  that's something that we really need to look at. In

         21  any event, the City needs to, in the spirit of

         22  collective bargaining sit down with the unions and

         23  work this thing out in good faith.

         24                 The American worker, the municipal

         25  workers of this City should not be viewed as the
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          2  enemy, and should not be viewed as cattle. This

          3  represents a return to the factory floor and the

          4  time clock mentality that we're supposed to be many

          5  decades removed from, and on behalf of Arthur Kelly

          6  Otis, the President of 1180 Executive Board, and the

          7  9,000 membership of Local 1180, we stand

          8  shoulder-to-shoulder and in total solidarity with

          9  all the unions, and we thank 375 for leading the

         10  charge on this.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 MR. CHORNY: Good afternoon. My name

         13  is Leonid Chorny. I am a Construction Project

         14  Manager with Department of Design and Construction.

         15  And as field personnel, this affect me less than

         16  others, because I have a choice. At the same time, I

         17  decide to testify against the use of scanners,

         18  because very often I see extremely negative

         19  psychological reaction from DDC employees, because

         20  they are disturbed by these problems with the

         21  scanners, and they don't feel that they should be

         22  installed also.

         23                 Such devices were designed for

         24  security control of access into the building, but in

         25  DDC, they are installed inside of the rooms,
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          2  therefore they are no use for any security purposes.

          3                 The scanners are not required for

          4  regular time entries, which can be done from

          5  computers, as it is being done now by DDC field

          6  personnel.

          7                 And in some life situations, like

          8  speed limit or checking bags in the subway system,

          9  nobody likes it but it can be justified because we

         10  need it. In this situation, I don't see any

         11  justification for use of scanners. Zero

         12  justification. Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you, Mr.

         14  Chorny.

         15                 I want to thank a couple of people.

         16  Fred Newton, I want to thank you for being an

         17  initial part of the process, for bringing this issue

         18  to my attention. There is a number of people who had

         19  done that, and you're part of them and I want to

         20  thank you for it.

         21                 Mr. Lamb, I want to say also I agree

         22  with you. You know, it is time now, you know,

         23  hearing this testimony today, it is time really to

         24  hopefully have the Administration resolve these

         25  issues by communicating with their workforce,
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          2  obviously hopefully some resolve of this. It's a

          3  shame they had to get to the litigated matter. I was

          4  hopeful that we could avoid that and go toward a

          5  more amicable negotiation or communication so I

          6  agree with you in that.

          7                 So, again, to all of you, I

          8  appreciate your time and testimony here today. Thank

          9  you very much. Thank you.

         10                 MR. LAMB: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Our last panel

         12  for today, Flora Tannenbaum, DYCD; John Parris, Jr.,

         13  Local 1757; Fran Schloss, an employee of the City of

         14  New York; and Seth Frankel. And, again, just as a

         15  reminder, if you do know of any employee of yours

         16  who has an issue with the hand scanners, with City

         17  Time, even the voice recorders, please encourage

         18  them to reach out to me, either via e-mail, or by

         19  written correspondence, and we will definitely reach

         20  back out to them.

         21                 As the panel settles in, I would like

         22  to thank them for their time, for being here. When

         23  you get settled, just please state your name for the

         24  record, your affiliation, and give your testimony,

         25  please.
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          2                 MS. SCHLOSS: Mr. Chairman, members of

          3  the Committee, good afternoon. My name is Francine

          4  Schloss, and I have been employed by the City of New

          5  York Department of Finance for the past 28 years,

          6  the last 26 years in the title of City Assessor.

          7                 Currently, I am a supervising

          8  assessor with expertise in the valuation of

          9  specialty properties, such as the Metropolitan

         10  Museum of Art and Madison Square Garden.

         11                 I oppose Ingersol Rand's contract

         12  with the City of New York to introduce within the

         13  Department of Finance a part of the time keeping

         14  process biometrics.

         15                 My opposition is three-pronged:

         16  ethical, real world and economic. Firstly, the right

         17  to privacy ethically connotes one's ability to

         18  exercise control over information about one's self.

         19  I therefore believe that I alone, as an individual,

         20  have a right to the control of my own data, even if

         21  it is merely, as it is in this instance, a recording

         22  of the size and shape of my hand to verify my

         23  identity.

         24                 With that being said, I respectfully

         25  ask who were the independent testers that use this
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          2  biometric product in a non-laboratory real-world

          3  application environment before its deployment? After

          4  all, accuracy and error rates published by Ingersol

          5  Rand should not be viewed as trustworthy.

          6                 Therefore, what percentage of this

          7  real world testing, if there indeed was one, failed

          8  to match subject with its own reference sample?

          9                 What percentage incorrectly matched a

         10  subject to someone else's reference sample?

         11  Furthermore, what precautions have been taken to

         12  avoid the theft of this biometric database once

         13  enrollment has transpired?

         14                 If this database is compromised

         15  through an unauthorized acquisition, in other words,

         16  if it is stolen, what recourse do I have?

         17                 Please keep in mind that hand

         18  geometry is unique to each individual. Unlike a

         19  stolen social security number, it cannot be changed.

         20                 In addition to what I have already

         21  stated, this biometric hand geometry keeping device

         22  removes responsibility from the rank and file

         23  employees, and from me their supervisor. It

         24  substitutes in its place control. Not exactly a real

         25  world morale builder.
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          2                 If this system is implemented, I can

          3  no longer envision any employee, expending an

          4  additional five, ten, 15 or 20 minutes, let alone an

          5  hour or two hours of their own time to complete a

          6  last-minute project once the clock has struck 5:00

          7  p.m.

          8                 Ingersol Rand states that this

          9  product is the solution to what is termed "buddy

         10  punching." Buddy punching is a practice whereby one

         11  individual clocks in for another individual, who

         12  will be five to ten minutes late to the workplace.

         13  I, as a City Tier IV assessor do not punch a time

         14  clock, nor do I sign a time sheet.

         15                 Regardless, the start-up cost for

         16  this project to the City of New York is $240

         17  million, and will exceed 300 million when it is

         18  completely installed. Has anyone calculated how many

         19  City employees would have to be buddy punching over

         20  how long a period of time in order for the City to

         21  break even?

         22                 The implementation of this biometric

         23  device is clearly economic overkill to the task at

         24  hand. Thank you for allowing me this opportunity to

         25  address you today.
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          2                 MS. TANNENBAUM: Hi. My name is Flora

          3  Tannenbaum, and I'm with the Department of Youth and

          4  Community Development.

          5                 About a week ago we received an

          6  e-mail saying that this -- am I talking too loud?

          7  Okay, received an e-mail saying that this system,

          8  the bio -- let me give the correct name, okay, the

          9  hand punch biometric system was going to be

         10  implemented. And, you know, I let it sink in for

         11  awhile and everybody was looking around, and they

         12  were being -- the machines were installed on all

         13  floors, and we were told this was going to happen.

         14  We weren't asked anything about it. We had no

         15  history about why this was happening to us. I mean,

         16  I have no knowledge of cases of people stealing

         17  time. I know people that are given much more than

         18  are supposed to, so like when the day ends, the day

         19  still keeps going an hour or two even after. I

         20  develop contracts for the City, and sometimes you

         21  can't measure it by nine to five. You know,

         22  sometimes you come in earlier and you most times

         23  leave later.

         24                 And I have a question. I'd like to

         25  know who is profiting from the installation of these
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          2  machines? Why all of a sudden is this going to

          3  happen? And it's going to be nationwide, not

          4  Citywide.

          5                 And for quite a few reasons, I spoke

          6  to a couple of coworkers, and one reason came up

          7  today why she will not use this biometric hand

          8  puncher is for religious reasons. I didn't even

          9  think of that. Mine was for sanity -- for

         10  sanitation, for cleanliness reasons, and I saw an

         11  article and it was frequently asked questions about

         12  the hand punch system. And one line, it's on page

         13  three of the handout, and it says "Is the hand punch

         14  safe?" And one line, it talks about infrared lights

         15  and it talks about, "the light's power level is 100

         16  milliwatts, less than that amount produced by

         17  natural sunlight or microwave ovens.

         18                 So, they're comparing it to microwave

         19  ovens. I don't put my hand inside the oven and press

         20  one or press then press one or press the minute, you

         21  know. I mean, so I thought this was outrageous when

         22  I read it. I kept reading it over and over and I

         23  handed it out to some people at work and they were

         24  shocked that they would even go there. And then

         25  someone said to me, well, read a little bit further.
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          2  It says systems have been contacted by US

          3  Occupational Safety and Health Administration, OSHA,

          4  and has supplied or required information. No reports

          5  of hazards have been generated by OSHA. Not yet.

          6                 I read of a study that was done on 61

          7  people, and they put their hands inside a machine to

          8  see the effects, and they were gloved. They didn't

          9  put their naked hand inside the machine to take a

         10  reading. They were gloved. And for the religious

         11  part, a woman I work with says she can't use it

         12  because she said both Revelations 13 and 14, and

         13  Revelations 13, versus 16 and 18 is sort of like,

         14  it's like you're giving up your human rights. And as

         15  a human being, where do we go next with all of this.

         16                 You know, it's called the mark of the

         17  beast revelations, and I didn't even think of that.

         18                 And as a matter of fact, Pfizer, they

         19  were going to install these hand punch machines at

         20  Pfizer, and they were shut down. They don't have

         21  them. And I believe religious Jewish people will not

         22  put their hand in there as well. It goes against

         23  their religion, against their beliefs and they will

         24  just not do it.

         25                 It's like following somebody. It's
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          2  like, it's like you're unsure about where is this

          3  all going. You know, you're taking an X-ray off my

          4  hand and like how else are you using this besides

          5  time management, and how did this get so severe? I

          6  mean, what has prompted this on? What cases are

          7  there out here that has prompted this kind of

          8  enforcement? It's like are we criminals?

          9                 I believe in choice and at the moment

         10  I don't have choice and so that makes me really

         11  upset and fearful and angry.

         12                 You know, I was reading what it says

         13  up here, "a government of the people, by the people

         14  and for the people," well, it doesn't seem like it

         15  is. That's all. I have more but, next.

         16                 MR. PARRIS: My name is John Parris.

         17  I'm an assessor in the Department of Finance, the

         18  City of New York, 21-year employee and professional.

         19  I probably won't have to put my hands in it. I'm

         20  testifying, I'm departing just a little bit from

         21  what I handed out. I just wanted to start. Honorable

         22  ladies and gentlemen of the City Council of New York

         23  City, Mayor's Office and agency representatives,

         24  labor leaders and guests of interest here assembled,

         25  may we recognize that one manner or another we are

                                                            112

          1  CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  all working for the people of the City of New York,

          3  and will eventually fall subject to a system we may

          4  approve today. Amen.

          5                 Today is a historic event where we

          6  deliberate the institution of an official invasion

          7  of privacy system, that portends to be the first in

          8  personal rights abnegation leading our civilization

          9  into an Orwellian future.

         10                 I was going to dispense with the

         11  so-called merits of the proposal, but my

         12  predecessors here have already done a pretty good

         13  job of that, but I would like to say that I estimate

         14  that the cost before it's over is going to be nearly

         15  a billion dollars. After all, it's stated it's only

         16  a start-up for $240 million, and it's not working

         17  yet. And in its initial stages, it will not apply to

         18  high-paid and management positions.

         19                 This is as if the headlines of last

         20  week do not show that mistakes happen in those ranks

         21  as well.

         22                 I'm talking about the Fox 5 newscast.

         23  A system that leaves such a large segment of City

         24  workers unaccounted for cannot be hailed as

         25  efficient. In the light of part-time hours, of our
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          2  recent Governor, how long will it be before the

          3  public demands time accounting by elected officials

          4  as well? Body parts monitoring? Our banks are

          5  pushing for premiums to protect against identity

          6  theft for their clients, even when they clearly

          7  state that they have the right to sell your credit

          8  information report to credit reporting bureaus.

          9                 There is an occasional news item

         10  about one bank or another losing personal data. Last

         11  week it was HSBC. The high jinks of Mission

         12  Impossible are technologically old hat today.  How

         13  difficult would it be to cut into one of the wires

         14  of the hundreds of terminals in the City and bleed

         15  all the information about you? To what use will the

         16  information be put? Identity theft? What about

         17  identity erasure? Or even identity creation,

         18  creating people who never existed or changing facts

         19  in personnel files.

         20                 Who controls the databank?

         21                 I know that the installers spoke a

         22  foreign language. Russian. Just a note. Will the

         23  data be sold? To whom? And added to what databank?

         24                 Electronic storage or body parts

         25  information for immediate confirmation was not and
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          2  is not terms and conditions of employment but an

          3  unconstitutional invasion of privacy, which both the

          4  City and the labor unions have chosen not to look at

          5  for decades.

          6                 If there exists a side memo or

          7  understanding, it is unknown to the general union

          8  membership, and the question has to be raised

          9  whether a union can make an agreement of indentured

         10  servitude for a multitude.

         11                 The servitude contract is for a

         12  period of time and during which such time the

         13  freedom rights of individuals are subjugated to that

         14  of the master. Slaves, indentured servants, women

         15  and children, did not have any time rights.

         16                 Slaves and servants did not have job

         17  security issues. Women and children were fired at a

         18  whim. Are servitude contracts legal, enforceable?

         19  The Constitution did not address the rights of

         20  slaves or indentured servants, only free men, not

         21  even free women. We are free men and women.

         22                 And I ask, did the union, in an

         23  effort to guarantee job security acquiesce to our

         24  fall into servitude?

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

          3  much. Thank you very much, Mr. Parris.

          4                 Mr. Frankel.

          5                 MR. FRANKEL: Councilman, it's good to

          6  see you again.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you, Mr.

          8  Frankel.

          9                 MR. FRANKEL: You had mentioned before

         10  about people can e-mail to you. The first attachment

         11  after my testimony that you have there is the e-mail

         12  I sent to you on July 12th of 2006. It's page, look

         13  at the fifth page there. And after mailing you that

         14  e-mail about the system, and after mailing it to

         15  Commissioner Frieden, and to various Council

         16  members, DDC blocked my mailing, external e-mailing

         17  of anybody outside of DDC's main office. So, that's

         18  how DDC feels about this issue.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Interesting.

         20                 MR. FRANKEL: I'm going to keep things

         21  more down to earth about the problems with the hand

         22  scans.

         23                 The hand scanning devices at DDC do

         24  not provide security. They don't open doors, don't

         25  even identify the person clocking in. An individual
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          2  member code does that. The only purpose of the hand

          3  scanners is to verify that buddy swiping isn't going

          4  on. The hand scanning of City employees earning less

          5  than overtime cap, one, selectively places lower

          6  paid employees at high risk of communicable disease;

          7  two, is demeaning, not productive, and unnecessary;

          8  three, is redundant, due to existing supervisory

          9  responsibility; four, is mechanically unreliable;

         10  five, has, as we've heard, a rather unsizable

         11  initial cost; and an unknown total cost to the City;

         12  and perhaps more importantly, after the issue of

         13  health, is in violation of the Citywide contract

         14  provision for time clocks.

         15                 I want to deal basically with the

         16  issue of health first. After the Mayor and

         17  Commissioner Frieden had a July 10th, 2006 statement

         18  on interagency cooperation and preparation in the

         19  face of possible pandemic, and I attached the cover

         20  page of that. I e-mailed you and the others about

         21  why the City would institute a new way to spread

         22  disease.

         23                 Now, we have in December 2006, the

         24  issue, the incident of the communicable disease

         25  spreading throughout a Royal Caribbean ship, not
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          2  once but twice after disinfecting with bleach,

          3  underscoring the danger of spring disease via, what

          4  they quote in the New York Times article, which I

          5  have attached, "high-touch surfaces."

          6                 DDC is providing Purell dispensers

          7  right by these hand scanners. The attached articles

          8  I found last night on the Internet about recent last

          9  week infections in Washington DC and Seattle,

         10  indicate that alcohol-based hand disinfectants are

         11  useless entire against the Norovirus, which is this

         12  nasty gastrointestinal virus in spring in these

         13  three cases.

         14                 A Norovirus outbreak would spread

         15  rapidly through the ranks of hand-scanning employees

         16  by direct contact, but since germs are very

         17  democratic, gastrointestinal disease would soon

         18  spread to DDC management. Germ-conscious DDC

         19  employees currently use hand towels to open doors

         20  after they use the restrooms.

         21                 With hand scanners, all employees

         22  under the cap are forced to press their hands on a

         23  communal metal plate. There is no denying that palm

         24  scanners place the users at increased risk of

         25  disease.
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          2                 Why then would the Mayoralty now

          3  demand that only its lower-paid workers press their

          4  hands at least twice a day on this new high-touch

          5  surface, when it is a proven mode of spreading

          6  influenza, gastrointestinal disease and Hepatitis C?

          7  My agency does not want this matter discussed or

          8  investigated. After I appeared before the OCB on

          9  this matter, DDC refused to extend release time to

         10  come here. I'm here on my own time today, because

         11  this issue should be dealt with now and it is that

         12  important.

         13                 The second point is DDC is hand

         14  scanning all the employees earning less than the

         15  overtime cap. Anybody earning more will continue to

         16  be trusted, to enter their sign-ins, sign-outs and

         17  lunch hours on their honor via their computers. Hand

         18  scanning lesser paid workers visibly in front of

         19  their coworkers, singles are not as untrusted.

         20                 While it is true that the Citywide

         21  contract permits time clocking workers getting less

         22  than the overtime cap, it's true that DDC, in ten

         23  years, had not time clocked any worker, its first

         24  ten years of existence.

         25                 Additionally, the workers who came to
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          2  DDC from DEP and DOT didn't time clock there. So,

          3  it's an issue of trust, and the supposition of

          4  cheating.

          5                 If hand scanning is needed to ensure

          6  that City workers don't cheat on time, then we need

          7  to hand scan everyone.

          8                 DDC is trusting the 500 workers who

          9  earned in excess of the City overtime cap to be

         10  honest. They can easily once again trust all of us

         11  by having everyone enter their time by a computer on

         12  City Time.

         13                 And this question has been asked

         14  before: What is the need to time clock lower paid

         15  workers now of the excuse to initiate a lucrative

         16  contract to a private corporation.

         17                 The third point has long been one of

         18  the functions of a City supervisor to verify the

         19  accuracy of hours signed for by their subordinates.

         20  We pay supervisors to do just that.

         21                 The palm scanner relieves supervisors

         22  from that responsibility. Will the City now cut

         23  their salaries across the board to match this

         24  reduction in job responsibility?

         25                 Fourth point. City Time is being
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          2  implemented at DDC with serious known bugs in its

          3  coding that Pfizer encountered in fact.

          4                 Two co-workers, one at OPA, Associate

          5  Staff Analyst and one, a computer specialist level 3

          6  at DDC found that on days when you came to the work

          7  and took leave, the City Time would calculate time

          8  incorrectly.

          9                 And my last point is that DDC

         10  scanners are not legitimate time clocks. A true time

         11  clock always works, is always immediately readable,

         12  and each time clock is 100 percent accurate.

         13                 The individual DDC scanners at DDC do

         14  not always work and have included proof of that in

         15  e-mail sent by DDC management in complaints to DDC.

         16                 As recently as two weeks ago, Friday

         17  afternoon and Monday morning hand scans were not

         18  readable on City Time until Monday at 1:30 p.m. So,

         19  you couldn't tell what time you scanned in.

         20                 The same problem occurred the next

         21  day on a heavy e-mail from City Time manager

         22  expressing that.

         23                 Lastly, two time clocks are also

         24  interchangeable. The DCDs at DDC very widely, in

         25  their ability to recognize palms, go through machine
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          2  to machine and also in a given scanner in a given

          3  time. The scanners smudge up, collecting grease,

          4  body oils, bacteria, viruses, and smutch (phonetic),

          5  some of which appear to affect readability. I'm

          6  attaching e-mails expressing that point along with

          7  my testimony.

          8                 Thank you very much for your time.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you, Mr.

         10  Frankel. Some of you basically summarized the whole

         11  hearing in a matter of six paragraphs. I appreciate

         12  that. But I do appreciate your time and effort and

         13  your testimony.

         14                 What it looks like here is that we're

         15  punishing the many for maybe the acts of the few.

         16  This buddy punching system that obviously the City

         17  may be looking to attack is really, and I'm hopeful,

         18  and I think I heard it from those who gave

         19  testimony, very, very, very few percentile, a

         20  fraction of our workforce. And for that I believe

         21  the entire workforce is being penalized for it, and

         22  I don't think that's fair.

         23                 MS. TANNENBAUM: Why is it assumed

         24  that people who make lower salaries are the ones

         25  that are stealing time?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Like I mentioned

          3  earlier, you know, the unfairness of treating

          4  workers differently, and obviously they could be

          5  characterized as low-income, but, you know, to

          6  categorize or to treat workers unfairly and

          7  equitably, obviously, is a main concern for me as

          8  well. And I will bring that up to the

          9  Administration.

         10                 Again, I thank this panel, as all,

         11  for their time and testimony. What happens here,

         12  ladies and gentlemen, is this: basically we

         13  culminate this testimony and any other testimony or

         14  information that we get subsequent to this hearing.

         15  I will have conversations with the Administration

         16  about this issue in accordance and in conjunction

         17  with obviously the litigation that is pending. I am

         18  hopeful that we can have some positive resolve to

         19  this situation. What that is, I can't tell you at

         20  this point, but I am hopeful for a positive resolve

         21  and increased communication and input by our

         22  workforce.

         23                 So, I thank you very much, all, for

         24  your time and testimony.

         25                 MS. TANNENBAUM: Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you.

          3                 Meeting adjourned.

          4                 (Hearing concluded at 3:42 p.m.)
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          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter, do hereby certify that the

         11  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         12  within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 22nd day of January 2007.
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